
Agenda 

CITY OF MILLERSBURG 

City Council Regular Meeting & PUBLIC HEARING 
Electronic Meeting 

December 14, 2021 @ 6:30 PM 

Remote Access for the meeting is available. Instructions for joining the meeting can be found 

at https://www.cityofmillersburg.org/citycouncil/page/city-council-regular-meeting. If you

do not have access to a phone or computer, or need additional support, please contact 

City Hall prior to 5:00 p.m. on Monday, December 13.  

Meeting link to join via computer: 

https://aspenuc.accessionmeeting.com/j/11597014359 

Phone number to join meeting:  503-212-9900 

Meeting ID:  115 9701 4359 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

CHANGES AND ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 

CONSENT AGENDA 

1) Approval of November 9, 2021 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes

2) Acceptance of City Accounts Payable Report

Action:__________________________________________________

GUEST PRESENTATIONS 

3) Linn County Sheriff's Office

4) Engineering Intern Presentation

PUBLIC COMMENT 

The public has the opportunity to address the Council during "Public Comment.” Those 

attending virtually may raise their hand electronically or request to speak upon 

unmuting.  The public may also send written comments by email to 

citvclerk@cityofmillersburg.org. Please limit comments to one page and include your name 

and address. Emails received before 5:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting will be included 

and read into the record for comments by the Council. 

1Page 1 of 67

https://www.cityofmillersburg.org/citycouncil/page/city-council-regular-meeting-15
https://aspenuc.accessionmeeting.com/j/11597014359
mailto:citvclerk@cityofmillersburg.org


PUBLIC HEARING 

5) Development Code Update - Ordinance 192-21

Action:__________________________________________________

COUNCIL MEMBER AND STAFF COMMENTS 

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT 

6) Fire Station Project Report

7) Project Updates

8) Establish Workgroup for Republic Services Review

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

NEW BUSINESS 

9) Municipal Code Sign Update - Repealing and Replacing MC Chapter 5.10 -

Ordinance 193-21

Action:__________________________________________________

CLOSING PUBLIC COMMENT 

CLOSING COUNCIL COMMENT 

ADJOURNMENT 

Note:  Council may adjourn to executive session in accordance with ORS 192.660. 

Upcoming Meetings & Events: 

Visit the City’s online calendar: https://www.cityofmillersburg.org/calendar 

Rules of Conduct for Public Hearings 

1. No person shall be disorderly, abusive, or disruptive of the orderly conduct of the hearing.

2. Persons shall not testify without first receiving recognition from the presiding officer and stating their full name

and residence address.

3. No person shall present irrelevant, immaterial, or repetitious testimony or evidence.

4. There shall be no audience demonstrations such as applause, cheering, display of signs, or other conduct

disruptive of the hearing.

2Page 2 of 67



 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
via Virtual Meeting 

November 9, 2021 @ 6:30 p.m. 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER Meeting called to order by Mayor Lepin at 6:30 p.m. 

 

B. ROLL CALL 

Councilors Present: Mayor Jim Lepin, Councilors Scott Cowan, Scott McPhee, John 

Sullivan, Dave Harms 

Councilors Absent: None 

Staff Present: Kevin Kreitman, City Manager; Forrest Reid, City Attorney; Kimberly 

Wollenburg, City Recorder; Matt Straite, Community Development 

Director 

Presenters: Lieutenant Beth Miller, Linn County Sheriff’s Office 
 

C. CHANGES AND ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 

1) After receiving input from citizens and councilors, Mayor Lepin decided to 

withdraw the ATV agenda item.  

 

D. CONSENT AGENDA 

1) Approval of October 12, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes 

2) Acceptance of City Accounts Payable Report 

Action: Motion to Approve Consent Agenda as Presented made by Councilor 

Scott Cowan; seconded by Councilor Scott McPhee. 

Mayor Jim Lepin:  Aye 

Councilor Scott Cowan: Aye 

Councilor Dave Harms: Aye 

Councilor Scott McPhee: Aye 

Councilor John Sullivan: Aye 

Motion PASSED: 5/0 

 

E. GUEST PRESENTATIONS 

1) Linn County Sheriff’s Office Monthly Report 

Lieutenant Beth Miller reviewed the October 2021 monthly report. She spoke 

about the extra patrols the deputies are performing for parking and speeding 

issues, as well as issues at Love’s. Mayor Lepin shared that Sergeant Frambes 

offered for the Council and staff to do a ride-a-long with deputies and see how 

the speeding is reviewed. 

 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT 

None 

 

G. COUNCIL MEMBER AND STAFF COMMENTS 

1) Events Planning Committee 

Councilor Cowan provided an update regarding the upcoming Celebration of 

Lights with similar events to the Celebration of Lights in 2020. The theme is Winter 

4

Item 1)

Page 3 of 67



Wonderland. For more information and to sign up for events, visit the City’s 

website. 

 

H. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

1) Fire Station Project Report 

City Manager Kreitman provided an update on the Fire Station Project and 

construction activities in progress at the site. In addition, he reviewed the project 

budget and current change orders. 

 

2) Project Updates 

City Manager Kreitman provided an update regarding various maintenance and 

construction activities in progress throughout the City. Community Development 

Director Straite shared that he’d gotten the final draft of the Housing Needs 

Analysis and Buildable Lands Inventory and explained briefly the purpose and the 

reason for the studies. He noted that the studies would be used to help create the 

housing chapter in the Comprehensive Plan that the City received a grant to 

complete. The Housing Needs Analysis would be brought to the Council for 

review. City Manager Kreitman noted that in December or January staff would 

bring to the Council a request for an increase in the funds budgeted for an 

economic analysis.  

 

Community Development Director Straite shared that now businesses and 

residents can use Millersburg as the City in the last line of the address instead of 

Albany. The Post Office approved the use of Millersburg or Albany on the last line 

of the address. City Manager Kreitman noted that in the past discussions with the 

postal service and federal representatives, regarding adding Millersburg as a 

recognized city under zip code 97321 as addressed in a report to Congress; no 

one could figure out what was required to allow Millersburg as recognized City.  

When this was shared with the current Albany Postmaster Dr. Juan Carwell, he 

investigated and had what was required completed within two months. 

 

3) Information Handouts 

Community Development Director Straite shared with the Council the various 

handouts, which have been created for things like fences, accessory structures, 

driveway curb cuts, and more to provide information for residents on various 

areas. 

 

I. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

None 

 

J. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

None 

 

K. NEW BUSINESS 

1) ADS Contract Amendment 15 

City Manager Kreitman briefed the staff report regarding the need to extend the 

contract. 

Action: Motion to Approve & Authorize the City Manager to Sign Amendment 15 to 

the ADS Flow Monitoring Contract, made by Councilor John Sullivan; seconded by 

Councilor Scott McPhee. 

5

Item 1)

Page 4 of 67



Mayor Jim Lepin:  Aye 

Councilor Scott Cowan: Aye 

Councilor Dave Harms: Aye 

Councilor Scott McPhee: Aye 

Councilor John Sullivan: Aye 

Motions PASSED: 5/0 

 

2) Republic Services Rate Increase 

City Manager Kreitman reviewed the staff report. Executive Director, Julie 

Jackson, with Republic Services, reviewed the rate increase request starting with 

Republic Services Statement of Income related to Millersburg. 

 

Mayor Lepin mentioned: 

1) He requested a copy of an old agreement with Republic Services and various 

other cities which Ms. Jackson will supply. 

2) He requested clarification on how the businesses are charged in the City. Ms. 

Jackson confirmed the rates on the rate sheets with the Council and explained 

how they are presented. Mayor Lepin asked if the contract should be 

revaluated based on the growth of the City. Ms. Jackson shared that she 

believes there could be some possible changes that might work for the City. 

There was lengthy discussion regarding how the rate increase is calculated 

and the status of the recycling surcharge. Ms. Jackson provided some history 

regarding the timing of the surcharge and what the numbers look like 

compared to the past. Ms. Jackson suggested reevaluating the recycling 

surcharge mid-2022. 

 

Mayor Lepin asked the Council what they would like Republic Services bring back 

to December meeting to discuss. Councilor McPhee asked for the recycle 

surcharge numbers. 

 

City Manager Kreitman asked if the Council was interested in seeing the history of 

the rate increases and how rates are determined. Mayor Lepin asked the staff to 

bring back the information so the Council can use information for long-term 

discussions and decisions.  A decision was made to meet with Republic services in 

the Spring of 2022, to review how rates are calculated including consideration of 

rates based on line of business profitability vs. an aggerate rate calculation for 

determining rates and reviewing of recycling service surcharges.  Council agreed 

to establish a work group for the review. 

 

Councilor John Sullivan mentioned as possible conflict of interest as he is the 

General Manager for a waste management company in Keizer. 

 

Action: Motion to Approve Resolution 21-23 Authorizing a 5.9% Increase to 

Republic Services Solid Waste Rates with a Quarterly Review of the Current Trends 

in Recycling Cost Revenue made by Mayor Jim Lepin; seconded by Councilor 

Scott Cowan. 

Mayor Jim Lepin:  Aye 

Councilor Scott Cowan: Aye 

Councilor Dave Harms: Nay 

Councilor Scott McPhee: Nay 

6

Item 1)

Page 5 of 67



Councilor John Sullivan: Aye 

Motions PASSED: 3/2 

 

L. CLOSING PUBLIC COMMENT 

None 

 

M. CLOSING COUNCIL COMMENT 

1) Mayor Lepin thanked staff for the posting of the poll on the ATVs that provided 

him information to determine the addition of agenda item and noted how useful 

the tool is going to be to receive citizen input as needed in the future. 

 

N. ADJOURNMENT Mayor Lepin adjourned the regular meeting at 7:55 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted:     Reviewed by: 

 

 

 

Kimberly Wollenburg     Kevin Kreitman 

City Recorder      City Manager 

7

Item 1)

Page 6 of 67



City of Millersburg Check Register Page:     1

Live 2.05.2021  Hosted Check Issue Dates: 11/4/2021 - 12/9/2021 Dec 09, 2021  03:15PM

Report Criteria:

Report type:  Invoice detail

Check.Type = {<>} "Adjustment"

GL Check Check Vendor Invoice Invoice Discount Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Number Payee Number GL Account Taken Amount Amount

18709

11/21 11/05/2021 18709 7 4S Sign LLC 48082 02-60-218 .00 303.55 303.55

Total 18709: .00 303.55

18710

11/21 11/05/2021 18710 607 Business Connections, Inc. 072210212021 01-40-215 .00 45.00 45.00

Total 18710: .00 45.00

18711

11/21 11/05/2021 18711 630 Carolyn Decker 4170 01-40-231 .00 40.00 40.00

Total 18711: .00 40.00

18712

11/21 11/05/2021 18712 1014 Coty Clack 1027 01-45-210 .00 80.00 80.00

Total 18712: .00 80.00

18713

11/21 11/05/2021 18713 327 De Lage Landen Financial Services, Inc. 74167215 01-40-223 .00 374.55 374.55

Total 18713: .00 374.55

18714

11/21 11/05/2021 18714 251 Dustin Patton 11012021 01-40-215 .00 35.00 35.00

Total 18714: .00 35.00

18715

11/21 11/05/2021 18715 335 EC Electrical Construction Co 215865 01-45-211 .00 296.49 296.49

Total 18715: .00 296.49

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check

8

Item 2)

Page 7 of 67



City of Millersburg Check Register Page:     2

Live 2.05.2021  Hosted Check Issue Dates: 11/4/2021 - 12/9/2021 Dec 09, 2021  03:15PM

GL Check Check Vendor Invoice Invoice Discount Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Number Payee Number GL Account Taken Amount Amount

18716

11/21 11/05/2021 18716 16 Forrest Reid 1021 01-40-230 .00 7,300.00 7,300.00

Total 18716: .00 7,300.00

18717

11/21 11/05/2021 18717 908 Hughes Fire Equipment Inc. 569957 02-60-212 .00 720.37 720.37

Total 18717: .00 720.37

18718

11/21 11/05/2021 18718 355 John Allen 10 01-40-231 .00 40.00 40.00

Total 18718: .00 40.00

18719

11/21 11/05/2021 18719 12 Linn County Sheriff's Office 1102 01-50-211 .00 34,659.00 34,659.00

Total 18719: .00 34,659.00

18720

11/21 11/05/2021 18720 869 Municode 00365514 01-40-223 .00 4,044.36 4,044.36

Total 18720: .00 4,044.36

18721

11/21 11/05/2021 18721 1016 Oregon Corrections Enterprises 0149801-IN 01-45-211 .00 4,192.00 4,192.00

Total 18721: .00 4,192.00

18722

11/21 11/05/2021 18722 842 Pacific Northwest Development Group 1460 01-40-229 .00 3,500.00 3,500.00

Total 18722: .00 3,500.00

18723

11/21 11/05/2021 18723 1015 Pacific Power-Albany 102321 01-50-725 .00 21,135.00 21,135.00

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check

9

Item 2)

Page 8 of 67



City of Millersburg Check Register Page:     3

Live 2.05.2021  Hosted Check Issue Dates: 11/4/2021 - 12/9/2021 Dec 09, 2021  03:15PM

GL Check Check Vendor Invoice Invoice Discount Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Number Payee Number GL Account Taken Amount Amount

Total 18723: .00 21,135.00

18724

11/21 11/05/2021 18724 447 R.L Reimers Company 221539 04-80-715 .00 42,678.99 42,678.99

Total 18724: .00 42,678.99

18725

11/21 11/05/2021 18725 902 Soderstrom Architects Ltd 8964 01-50-721 .00 986.20 986.20

Total 18725: .00 986.20

18726

11/21 11/05/2021 18726 958 Wildish Paving Co. 1021 05-95-611 .00 284,573.45 284,573.45

Total 18726: .00 284,573.45

18727

11/21 11/05/2021 18727 786 Witherspoon Industries LLC INV4772 01-40-223 .00 600.00 600.00

Total 18727: .00 600.00

18728

11/21 11/15/2021 18728 539 Barrett Business Services Inc. 3194563 01-45-211 .00 127.40 127.40

11/21 11/15/2021 18728 539 Barrett Business Services Inc. 3195376 01-45-211 .00 36.40 36.40

Total 18728: .00 163.80

18729

11/21 11/15/2021 18729 1017 Best Pots 449327 01-40-213 .00 200.00 200.00

Total 18729: .00 200.00

18730

11/21 11/15/2021 18730 870 CECO, INC. CP00342224 01-45-211 .00 211.98 211.98

Total 18730: .00 211.98

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check

10

Item 2)

Page 9 of 67



City of Millersburg Check Register Page:     4

Live 2.05.2021  Hosted Check Issue Dates: 11/4/2021 - 12/9/2021 Dec 09, 2021  03:15PM

GL Check Check Vendor Invoice Invoice Discount Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Number Payee Number GL Account Taken Amount Amount

18731

11/21 11/15/2021 18731 96 Cynthia Shaw 119 01-40-231 .00 40.00 40.00

Total 18731: .00 40.00

18732

11/21 11/15/2021 18732 916 ECONorthwest 24655 01-40-235 .00 868.75 868.75

Total 18732: .00 868.75

18733

11/21 11/15/2021 18733 1010 Eric Metz 2 01-40-235 .00 6,781.76 6,781.76

Total 18733: .00 6,781.76

18734

11/21 11/15/2021 18734 526 FEI Testing & Inspection Inc 32213 01-50-725 .00 1,311.40 1,311.40

Total 18734: .00 1,311.40

18735

11/21 11/15/2021 18735 805 Kelsi jo Amouak 115 01-40-231 .00 40.00 40.00

Total 18735: .00 40.00

18736

11/21 11/15/2021 18736 19 Linn County Planning and Building 10 01-52-211 .00 24,791.28 24,791.28

Total 18736: .00 24,791.28

18737

11/21 11/15/2021 18737 697 Linn County Print & Supplies 31102102 01-40-221 .00 700.00 700.00

Total 18737: .00 700.00

18738

11/21 11/15/2021 18738 869 Municode 00365513 01-40-223 .00 1,267.30 1,267.30

11/21 11/15/2021 18738 869 Municode 00366299 01-40-223 .00 395.00 395.00

11/21 11/15/2021 18738 869 Municode 00366300 01-40-223 .00 395.00 395.00

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check

11

Item 2)

Page 10 of 67



City of Millersburg Check Register Page:     5

Live 2.05.2021  Hosted Check Issue Dates: 11/4/2021 - 12/9/2021 Dec 09, 2021  03:15PM

GL Check Check Vendor Invoice Invoice Discount Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Number Payee Number GL Account Taken Amount Amount

Total 18738: .00 2,057.30

18739

11/21 11/15/2021 18739 968 Nicholas Borninski 114 01-45-210 .00 46.40 46.40

Total 18739: .00 46.40

18740

11/21 11/15/2021 18740 454 Nicole Neuschwander 119 01-45-210 .00 200.00 200.00

Total 18740: .00 200.00

18741

11/21 11/15/2021 18741 23 Pacific Power 11 04-80-217 .00 5,206.59 5,206.59

Total 18741: .00 5,206.59

18742

11/21 11/15/2021 18742 912 Saalfeld Griggs PC 442330 01-40-230 .00 244.00 244.00

Total 18742: .00 244.00

18743

11/21 11/15/2021 18743 207 Smith Glass Service, Inc. 1054708 01-40-213 .00 140.00 140.00

Total 18743: .00 140.00

18744

11/21 11/15/2021 18744 700 US Bank 0921-1021 01-40-221 .00 4,775.14 4,775.14

Total 18744: .00 4,775.14

18745

11/21 11/15/2021 18745 652 Wheat LLC 6497 02-60-214 .00 2,199.17 2,199.17

Total 18745: .00 2,199.17

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check

12

Item 2)

Page 11 of 67



City of Millersburg Check Register Page:     6

Live 2.05.2021  Hosted Check Issue Dates: 11/4/2021 - 12/9/2021 Dec 09, 2021  03:15PM

GL Check Check Vendor Invoice Invoice Discount Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Number Payee Number GL Account Taken Amount Amount

18746

11/21 11/18/2021 18746 48 Cintas Corporation-172 4097082637 01-40-221 .00 93.27 93.27

Total 18746: .00 93.27

18747

11/21 11/18/2021 18747 318 Government Ethics Commission AIE14738 01-40-212 .00 658.59 658.59

Total 18747: .00 658.59

18748

11/21 11/18/2021 18748 765 Handy Hands Landscape C&M LLC 10 01-40-223 .00 1,536.00 1,536.00

11/21 11/18/2021 18748 765 Handy Hands Landscape C&M LLC 10302021 04-80-715 .00 12,700.00 12,700.00

Total 18748: .00 14,236.00

18749

11/21 11/18/2021 18749 1018 Lindsay Burbey 1116 01-40-231 .00 40.00 40.00

Total 18749: .00 40.00

18750

11/21 11/18/2021 18750 836 LS Networks INV66682 01-40-215 .00 484.20 484.20

Total 18750: .00 484.20

18751

11/21 11/18/2021 18751 41 Providence Health Plan 111021 01-40-132 .00 4,703.90 4,703.90

Total 18751: .00 4,703.90

18752

11/21 11/18/2021 18752 56 Republic Services #450
045000344546

01-50-212 .00 101.96 101.96

Total 18752: .00 101.96

18753

11/21 11/18/2021 18753 1011 Sierra Springs
218041971113

01-40-221 .00 44.99 44.99

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check

13

Item 2)

Page 12 of 67



City of Millersburg Check Register Page:     7

Live 2.05.2021  Hosted Check Issue Dates: 11/4/2021 - 12/9/2021 Dec 09, 2021  03:15PM

GL Check Check Vendor Invoice Invoice Discount Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Number Payee Number GL Account Taken Amount Amount

Total 18753: .00 44.99

18754

11/21 11/18/2021 18754 233 Stutzman Services 39732134 01-40-213 .00 4,796.00 4,796.00

Total 18754: .00 4,796.00

18755

11/21 11/18/2021 18755 719 Zions Bank 11022021 05-90-610 .00 405,055.00 405,055.00

Total 18755: .00 405,055.00

18757

11/21 11/29/2021 18757 25 ADS. LLC 128141021 04-80-213 .00 772.00 772.00

Total 18757: .00 772.00

18758

11/21 11/29/2021 18758 43 Aflac 059885 01-40-130 .00 44.52 44.52

Total 18758: .00 44.52

18759

11/21 11/29/2021 18759 539 Barrett Business Services Inc. 3195910 01-45-211 .00 36.40 36.40

Total 18759: .00 36.40

18760

11/21 11/29/2021 18760 344 Carol Bispham Hashagen 11192021 01-40-231 .00 40.00 40.00

Total 18760: .00 40.00

18761

11/21 11/29/2021 18761 870 CECO, INC. CP00346216 01-45-211 .00 189.94 189.94

Total 18761: .00 189.94

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check

14

Item 2)

Page 13 of 67



City of Millersburg Check Register Page:     8

Live 2.05.2021  Hosted Check Issue Dates: 11/4/2021 - 12/9/2021 Dec 09, 2021  03:15PM

GL Check Check Vendor Invoice Invoice Discount Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Number Payee Number GL Account Taken Amount Amount

18762

11/21 11/29/2021 18762 466 CH2MHill Engineers Inc D339531305 05-90-218 .00 3,990.91 3,990.91

Total 18762: .00 3,990.91

18763

11/21 11/29/2021 18763 50 City of Albany 3775 01-50-210 .00 730,337.00 730,337.00

Total 18763: .00 730,337.00

18764

11/21 11/29/2021 18764 762 Code Publishing Co 71464 01-40-223 .00 480.00 480.00

Total 18764: .00 480.00

18765

11/21 11/29/2021 18765 659 David Evans & Associates, Inc. 1123 05-95-611 .00 8,966.69 8,966.69

Total 18765: .00 8,966.69

18766

11/21 11/29/2021 18766 327 De Lage Landen Financial Services, Inc. 74493690 01-40-223 .00 138.78 138.78

Total 18766: .00 138.78

18767

11/21 11/29/2021 18767 966 Jacob's Engineering Group Inc. D346340012 05-90-214 .00 684.83 684.83

11/21 11/29/2021 18767 966 Jacob's Engineering Group Inc. D346340013 05-90-214 .00 684.83 684.83

Total 18767: .00 1,369.66

18768

11/21 11/29/2021 18768 10 John Deere Financial 1 01-45-211 .00 185.36 185.36

Total 18768: .00 185.36

18769

11/21 11/29/2021 18769 1019 Logan Denney 18 01-40-231 .00 40.00 40.00

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check

15

Item 2)

Page 14 of 67



City of Millersburg Check Register Page:     9

Live 2.05.2021  Hosted Check Issue Dates: 11/4/2021 - 12/9/2021 Dec 09, 2021  03:15PM

GL Check Check Vendor Invoice Invoice Discount Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Number Payee Number GL Account Taken Amount Amount

Total 18769: .00 40.00

18770

11/21 11/29/2021 18770 483 MetLife - Group Benefits 01 01-40-135 .00 827.74 827.74

Total 18770: .00 827.74

18771

11/21 11/29/2021 18771 53 Oregon Cascades West COG QTR1FY22 01-40-222 .00 1,726.97 1,726.97

Total 18771: .00 1,726.97

18772

11/21 11/29/2021 18772 576 Shelley Wright 11 01-45-210 .00 70.40 70.40

Total 18772: .00 70.40

18773

11/21 11/29/2021 18773 1020 SHI International Corp B14295381 01-40-222 .00 3,756.08 3,756.08

Total 18773: .00 3,756.08

18775

12/21 12/06/2021 18775 539 Barrett Business Services Inc. 3196622 01-45-211 .00 81.90 81.90

Total 18775: .00 81.90

18776

12/21 12/06/2021 18776 607 Business Connections, Inc. 072211222021 01-40-215 .00 45.00 45.00

Total 18776: .00 45.00

18777

12/21 12/06/2021 18777 852 Creekside Valley Farms 12 01-40-239 .00 3,400.00 3,400.00

Total 18777: .00 3,400.00

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check

16

Item 2)

Page 15 of 67



City of Millersburg Check Register Page:     10

Live 2.05.2021  Hosted Check Issue Dates: 11/4/2021 - 12/9/2021 Dec 09, 2021  03:15PM

GL Check Check Vendor Invoice Invoice Discount Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Number Payee Number GL Account Taken Amount Amount

18778

12/21 12/06/2021 18778 327 De Lage Landen Financial Services, Inc. 74510127 01-40-223 .00 374.55 374.55

Total 18778: .00 374.55

18779

12/21 12/06/2021 18779 335 EC Electrical Construction Co 217129 02-60-215 .00 1,434.60 1,434.60

Total 18779: .00 1,434.60

18780

12/21 12/06/2021 18780 637 Erin Elizabeth Girt 40 01-40-231 .00 40.00 40.00

Total 18780: .00 40.00

18781

12/21 12/06/2021 18781 972 Greater Albany Public Schools District 8 1 01-52-210 .00 18,433.80 18,433.80

Total 18781: .00 18,433.80

18782

12/21 12/06/2021 18782 1021 Kevin Tinner 401 01-40-231 .00 40.00 40.00

Total 18782: .00 40.00

18783

12/21 12/06/2021 18783 923 MECOP Inc. C2022--021 01-40-125 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00

Total 18783: .00 3,000.00

18784

12/21 12/06/2021 18784 27 Metereaders LLC. 10041 05-90-213 .00 1,095.35 1,095.35

Total 18784: .00 1,095.35

18785

12/21 12/06/2021 18785 1022 OHA Cashier 1314 05-90-212 .00 200.00 200.00

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check

17

Item 2)

Page 16 of 67



City of Millersburg Check Register Page:     11

Live 2.05.2021  Hosted Check Issue Dates: 11/4/2021 - 12/9/2021 Dec 09, 2021  03:15PM

GL Check Check Vendor Invoice Invoice Discount Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Number Payee Number GL Account Taken Amount Amount

Total 18785: .00 200.00

18786

12/21 12/06/2021 18786 842 Pacific Northwest Development Group 1507 01-40-229 .00 3,500.00 3,500.00

Total 18786: .00 3,500.00

18787

12/21 12/06/2021 18787 617 Pacific Office Automation 787678 01-40-223 .00 17.42 17.42

Total 18787: .00 17.42

18788

12/21 12/06/2021 18788 328 Valley Merchant Police, Inc 2066 01-45-211 .00 307.50 307.50

Total 18788: .00 307.50

18789

12/21 12/06/2021 18789 786 Witherspoon Industries LLC INV4828 01-40-223 .00 600.00 600.00

Total 18789: .00 600.00

18790

12/21 12/08/2021 18790 222 Albany Area Chamber of Commerce 84741 01-40-227 .00 .00 .00
V

Total 18790: .00 .00

18791

12/21 12/08/2021 18791 1023 Amanda Katzenstein 123 01-40-231 .00 40.00 40.00

Total 18791: .00 40.00

18792

12/21 12/08/2021 18792 1026 Applegate Door Co. 58975 01-45-211 .00 2,117.00 2,117.00

Total 18792: .00 2,117.00

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check

18

Item 2)

Page 17 of 67



City of Millersburg Check Register Page:     12

Live 2.05.2021  Hosted Check Issue Dates: 11/4/2021 - 12/9/2021 Dec 09, 2021  03:15PM

GL Check Check Vendor Invoice Invoice Discount Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Number Payee Number GL Account Taken Amount Amount

18793

12/21 12/08/2021 18793 539 Barrett Business Services Inc. 3196885 01-45-211 .00 18.20 18.20

Total 18793: .00 18.20

18794

12/21 12/08/2021 18794 1025 Brenda Chapin 6423 01-45-210 .00 168.00 168.00

Total 18794: .00 168.00

18795

12/21 12/08/2021 18795 870 CECO, INC. CP00348080 01-45-211 .00 87.98 87.98

Total 18795: .00 87.98

18796

12/21 12/08/2021 18796 76 Coleen Haxby 111 01-45-210 .00 79.20 79.20

Total 18796: .00 79.20

18797

12/21 12/08/2021 18797 916 ECONorthwest 24786 01-40-235 .00 962.50 962.50

Total 18797: .00 962.50

18798

12/21 12/08/2021 18798 526 FEI Testing & Inspection Inc 32341 01-50-725 .00 293.30 293.30

Total 18798: .00 293.30

18799

12/21 12/08/2021 18799 87 Katrina Burch 1203 01-40-231 .00 40.00 40.00

Total 18799: .00 40.00

18800

12/21 12/08/2021 18800 1024 Larry Chapman 1202 01-40-231 .00 40.00 40.00

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check

19

Item 2)

Page 18 of 67



City of Millersburg Check Register Page:     13

Live 2.05.2021  Hosted Check Issue Dates: 11/4/2021 - 12/9/2021 Dec 09, 2021  03:15PM

GL Check Check Vendor Invoice Invoice Discount Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Number Payee Number GL Account Taken Amount Amount

Total 18800: .00 40.00

18801

12/21 12/08/2021 18801 205 Linn County Tax Collector 2022 01-40-238 .00 6,860.33 6,860.33

Total 18801: .00 6,860.33

18802

12/21 12/08/2021 18802 842 Pacific Northwest Development Group 1523 01-40-229 .00 225.00 225.00

Total 18802: .00 225.00

18803

12/21 12/08/2021 18803 617 Pacific Office Automation 796890 01-40-223 .00 129.16 129.16

Total 18803: .00 129.16

18804

12/21 12/08/2021 18804 23 Pacific Power 121621 04-80-217 .00 6,090.01 6,090.01

Total 18804: .00 6,090.01

18805

12/21 12/08/2021 18805 1027 Ram Steelco Inc. 746956 02-60-215 .00 211.31 211.31

12/21 12/08/2021 18805 1027 Ram Steelco Inc. 747345 02-60-212 .00 7.32 7.32

Total 18805: .00 218.63

18806

12/21 12/08/2021 18806 652 Wheat LLC 6539 02-60-214 .00 2,199.17 2,199.17

Total 18806: .00 2,199.17

Grand Totals: .00 1,690,906.49

Summary by General Ledger Account Number

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check

20

Item 2)

Page 19 of 67



 

LINN COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
 

Jim Yon, Sheriff 
1115 S.E. Jackson Street, Albany, OR 97322 

Albany, OR. 97322 
Phone: 541-967-3950 
www.linnsheriff.org 

 

 

 

 

2021 
 

MONTHLY REPORT TO THE CITY OF HARRISBURG 

FROM THE LINN COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE 

 

FOR THE MONTH OF: November 

 

 

 

TRAFFIC CITATIONS: _____________________________   13 

TRAFFIC WARNINGS: ______________________________     8 

TRAFFIC CRASHES: ________________________________     4 

ADULTS CITED/VIOLATIONS: ______________________     0 

ADULTS ARRESTED: ______________________________    10 

JUVENILES CITED/VIOLATIONS: __________________     0 

JUVENILES ARRESTED: ___________________________     0 

COMPLAINTS/INCIDENTS INVESTIGATED:  _________                                                

                                          

131 

    

TOTAL HOURS SPENT:         

 

Millersburg            169.75 

     
 

CONTRACT HOURS= 153 HOURS 

 

      
Jim Yon, 

         Sheriff, Linn County 

 

         By: Sergeant Steven Frambes 

 

21

Item 3)

Page 20 of 67



Proposal: Staff is proposing to make 16 different Code text revisions. In October of last year, 

the City adopted the new Development Code. As staff has been implementing the all-new 

Code the need for small revisions has become apparent. These include clarifications to 

setbacks, some uses in the Commercial Zone, performance standards in the General 

Industrial Zone, restaurant parking, temporary signs, single-family home standards, lot 

standards, land use approval modification standards, subdivision and partition standards, 

caretakers’ requirements, floodplain development requirements, driveway standards, and 

name-only changes to two zones.   

 

I. BACKGROUND 

 

A. Applicant: City of Millersburg 

 

B. Location: City Wide  

 

C. Review Type: The proposed Development Code Amendment (DC) requires 

a hearing before the Planning Commission whereby the Commission makes 

a recommendation to the City Council. A subsequent hearing before the 

City Council is required for a final action, including the adoption of an 

ordinance. Any appeal of the City Council’s decision relating to this matter 

will be considered by the Oregon Land Use Board of Appeals (LUBA). 

 

D. Public Notice and Hearing: A notice was posted in City Hall. A separate 

notice was sent to the Department of Land Conservation and Development 

(DLCD) on September 29, 2021. Information related to the hearing is posted 

on the City’s website here - http://cityofmillersbrg.org/planning-commision/. 

A Measure 56 notice was sent to every tax address in the City on September 

30, 2021.  

 

E. Review Criteria: Section 5.11.030 

 

F. Current Zoning: All zones will have some effect from the proposed changes.  

 

G. Background: Last year an all-new Development Code was adopted. Any 

time an all-new Development Code is drafted, it is anticipated that some 

small edits would be needed to address places where the Code did not fully 

address the City’s needs, something was inadvertently left out, or something 

was not as clear as it should have been. Staff has been compiling a list of 

needed edits since the Code was adopted. At the time this staff report was 

written there are 16 different places where edits are proposed. Some are 

small, like changing the name of a zone; others are larger, such as adding a 

section for temporary signage. 
 

  44

Item 5)

Page 21 of 67

http://cityofmillersbrg.org/planning-commision/


A table is shown below to illustrate all changes proposed at a glance. The actual 

proposed changes are attached in a separate document.  

 

The Planning Commission recommended approval to the City Council after two 

workshops and one hearing.   

 

Summary Table 1 

 Section Topic Proposed Update 

1 2.03.060 Two-Story setback 

clarification 

Clarify 8-foot setback to 2-story homes in 

2 residential zones. Clarify the definition 

of “story.” 

2 2.05 and 

throughout 

Change the name of the 

Residential Mixed-Use 

Zone (RM) to Residential 

Medium (RM) 

 

3 2.09 and 

throughout 

Change the name of the 

Limited Industrial Zone 

(LI) to Light Industrial (LI) 

 

4 2.08 Revised uses in the 

Commercial Zone 

Remove some uses from the General 

Commercial Zone - no mini storage, 

auto paint uses, RV parks, or similar.  

5 2.09.040 & 

3.24.010 

LI and PF Zone RV Park 

clarifications 

The RV Park standards in Section 3.24 

explain that LI permits RV parks with a 

CUP, but the LI Permitted Uses section 

does not state that. This clarifies that 

they would not be allowed in LI. Further, 

the PF zone permits them with a CUP, 

but Section 3.24 does not state that.  

6 2.10.060(7) GI Environmental 

Performance Standards 

The environmental performance 

standards were removed as it is 

duplicative as it’s listed in other sections. 

7 3.03 Restaurant Parking Revise restaurant parking requirements. 

8 3.06 Temporary Signs/ROW 

Signs 

Add a new more detailed section on 

Temporary Signs & allow traffic signs in 

ROW. 

9 3.06 Blade Banner Signs Add details about Blade Banner signs. 

10 3.12.020 Revised Single Family 

Home Design Standards 

Revise SFR design requirements, 

including a requirement for 12” eves 

and add more choices.  

11 4.02.030 Additional Lot Standards Add language for remainder lots, 

phased maps, re-divisions, and lot 

45

Item 5)

Page 22 of 67



averaging.  

12 5.01.060 Modifying Land Use 

Approvals 

Clarify the difference between a land 

use permit ‘reconsideration’ and a 

‘modification.’ 

13 5.07.060 Additional Subdivision 

and Partition Criteria 

Add more partition and subdivision 

criteria. 

14 1.02 & 3.28 Caretakers’ revisions Add a definition for “caretakers” and 

add a new Section 3.28 with standards 

for caretakers’ units in the Special Uses 

section of the Code.  

15 2.12.120 & 

5.01.030 

Floodplain Development 

Permit details added 

We have specified a process for the 

review of this State required application.  

16 3.03.080 Driveway pavement Add text to 3.03.080(1) to clarify that all 

residential driveways in all zones except 

the RU zone must be paved, including 

the full length of the driveway to the 

street apron.  

 

 

II. CRITERION 

CITY OF MILLERSBURG DEVELOPMENT CODE 

 

5.11.030  Decision Criteria. Amendments to the Comprehensive Plan or 

Development Code text shall be approved if the evidence can substantiate the 

following: 

 

(1) There are no negative impacts of the proposed amendment on land use and 

development patterns within the city, as measured by: 

a. Traffic generation and circulation patterns; 

b. Demand for public facilities and services; 

c. Level of park and recreation facilities; 

d. Economic activities; 

e. Protection and use of natural resources; and 

f. Compliance of the proposal with existing adopted special purpose 

plans or programs. 

 

  

46

Item 5)

Page 23 of 67



ANALYSIS: Table 2 below contains an analysis for each of the 16 changes 

proposed.  

 

Table 2- Criteria 1 Analysis 

 Topic Analysis 

1 Two-Story Setback 

Clarification 

The revision to the text is not changing a 

requirement, just clarifying the existing provision. 

Therefore, the change will not impact a-f in any 

way.  

2 Change the name of the 

Residential Mixed-Use 

Zone (RM) to Residential 

Medium (RM) 

The revision is to the zone name only. No 

requirements are changing based on the name 

change. Therefore, the change will not impact a-f 

in any way.  

3 Change the name of the 

Limited Industrial Zone 

(LI) to Light Industrial (LI) 

The revision is to the zone name only. No 

requirements are changing based on the name 

change. Therefore, the change will not impact a-f 

in any way.  

4 Revised uses in the 

Commercial Zone 

This change proposes to remove some uses from 

the General Commercial Zone, specifically mini 

storage, auto paint uses, cabinet manufacturing, 

and RV Parks. Removing the uses will not affect 

traffic or circulation patterns, demand for utilities or 

economic activities, the level of protection for 

resources or compliance with special programs. 

The removed uses are similar to other permitted 

uses as far as possible impacts to these categories. 

Park facility uses are not set by commercial 

activity, so there is no impact to RV Park facility 

levels.  

5 LI and PF Zone RV Park 

clarifications 

The revision to the text is not changing a 

requirement, just clarifying the existing provisions. 

Therefore, the change will not impact a-f in any 

way.  

6 GI Environmental 

Performance Standards 

The environmental performance standards were 

duplicative. No standards are changing, so there 

will be no negative impacts on categories a-f 

above.  

7 Restaurant Parking The reduced parking for restaurants will make us 

consistent with Albany’s requirements. The new 

provisions should still allow enough parking for the 

47

Item 5)

Page 24 of 67



use, because it has not created any issues in 

Albany. The change will have no effect to b-f 

because the amount of parking has does not 

dictate the demand for public facilities, park 

levels, protection for resources, or compliance with 

plans. Existing rules for each of these would still be 

applicable. Economic activity may increase, so 

there is no negative impact to the economy.  

8 Temporary Signs/ROW 

Signs 

The new rules for temporary signs will reduce 

clutter and influence the aesthetics and safety for 

the motorists in the City. This may require 

additional public services in terms of enforcement 

of the rules and removal of the signs, but it is for 

the betterment of the City, which is not a negative 

effect.  Park facilities, natural resources, and 

compliance with special plans will not be effected 

by temporary signs. The economy could be 

impacted as there would be less advertising which 

could hurt sales; however, the lack of clutter may 

make the City a more desirable location for 

businesses, thus helping the economy.  

9 Blade Banner Signs See above.  

10 Revised Single Family 

Home Design Standards 

These changes add more flexibility and higher 

levels of design requirements for new homes. This 

will have no impact on a-f with the exception of 

possibly the economic activity. The way a home 

looks has no impact on a-f. Regarding economic 

activity, the higher standard will help home sales.  

11 Additional Lot Standards The change adds additional requirements for 

remainder lots, phased maps, re-divisions, and lot 

averaging. This change will result in better 

subdivision design by assuring there are no 

unmaintained and forgotten lots within the City. 

This change will not affect traffic patterns except 

that there will need to be access provided to all 

remainder areas now. This is not a negative effect. 

There will be less demand for public services 

because the City could be stuck with maintaining 

abandoned areas left over in poor subdivision 

designs. There will be no effect to park needs. The 

48

Item 5)

Page 25 of 67



economy will improve because abandoned lots 

act as a deterrent to development (similar to the 

broken windows theory- better maintained areas 

perform better economically). Natural resources 

will be better protected because often developers 

who leave small portions of land in a subdivision 

do so to avoid responsibilities related to the 

protection of natural resources. Special plans in 

this City would include master plans, such as 

drainage plans, transportation system plans, and 

other such specialty master plans. This change will 

better implement these plans by assuring that 

every portion of a subdivision complies with the 

plans (rather than having the developer try to 

argue they are not part of the project and 

therefore need not comply).  

12 Modifying Land Use 

Approvals 

The revision to the text is not changing a 

requirement, just clarifying the existing provision. 

Therefore, the change will not impact a-f in any 

way.  

13 Additional Subdivision 

and Partition Criteria 

This change is moving an existing standard to the 

criteria section. The revision to the text is therefore, 

not changing a requirement, just clarifying the 

existing provision. Therefore, the change will not 

impact a-f in any way.  

14 Caretakers’ revisions This revision has added some additional 

regulations for caretaker’s units. These will have no 

impacts to the location or sitting of caretaker’s 

units, and will therefore not affect most of the 

items a-f.   

15 Floodplain Development 

Permit details added 

This change now specifies a process for the review 

of this State required application. This does not 

change any of the regulations, and will therefore 

have no effect on a-f.   

16 Driveway pavement The material of the driveways will not impact 

traffic, the economy, City plans, or the demand for 

Park space. This will improve the longevity of the 

street pavement as gravel is minimized on City 

streets, which will reduce demands of public 

services and make streets last longer. There will 

49

Item 5)

Page 26 of 67



likely be no impact to natural resources because 

runoff from driveways will be similar for gravel as it 

is for pavement, both are hard packed surfaces 

that do not allow percolation.   

 

 

FINDING: Based on the analysis above, the project meets the required criteria. 

 

(2) A demonstrated need exists for the proposed amendment. 

 

ANALYSIS: Staff has been tracking many small revisions that were needed to 

address places where the new Code did not fully address the City’s needs, 

something was inadvertently left out, or something was not as clear as it should 

have been. The need for the change is clear. These were all places where the 

Code was underperforming in some way and needed to be fixed. Staff decided 

to bring this forward now for several reasons. Some of these changes are 

needed sooner than others. In general though, the change is proposed now 

because we had amassed a large enough number of changes to justify the time 

needed to change the Code.   

 

FINDING: Based on the analysis above, the project meets the required criteria. 

 

(3) The proposed amendment complies with all applicable Statewide Planning 

Goals and Administrative Rule requirements. 

 

ANALYSIS: The State Planning Goals act as the foundation for land use planning 

in the State of Oregon. State Goals are implemented by City Comprehensive 

Plans, and Comprehensive Plans are implemented by Zoning Codes. When the 

current Development Code was adopted, it was found to be fully consistent 

with the State Goals and the City’s Comprehensive Plan.  

 

Table 3 below contains an analysis for each of the 16 changes proposed.  

 

Table 3- Criteria 3 Analysis 

 Topic Analysis 

1 Two-Story Setback 

Clarification 

Applicable goals would be Goal 10 Housing, and 

14 Urbanization. This complies with both because 

the clarification of the setback does not affect the 

cost or availability of housing.   

2 Change the name of the Zone names have no relevance to the State Goals 

50

Item 5)

Page 27 of 67



Residential Mixed-Use 

Zone (RM) to Residential 

Medium (RM) 

and are therefore not inconsistent.  

3 Change the name of the 

Limited Industrial Zone 

(LI) to Light Industrial (LI) 

Zone names have no relevance to the State Goals 

and are therefore not inconsistent.   

4 Revised uses in the 

Commercial Zone 

Applicable goals would be Goal 9 Economy of the 

State and 14 Urbanization. This complies with both 

because the uses that are proposed to be 

removed would not result in the highest and best 

use of the property, thereby negatively impacting 

the economy of the State. Removing the uses 

brings the Code more in line with Goal 9.   

5 LI and PF Zone RV Park 

clarifications 

Applicable goals would be Goal 2 Land Use 

Planning, Goal 10 Housing, Goal 9 Economy of the 

State, and 14 Urbanization. This complies with 

these Goals because it makes the Code internally 

consistent and assures that any new RV parks are 

built in a location that is more compatible with the 

surrounding communities. This assures proper 

implementation of each zone using its highest and 

best use.   

6 GI Environmental 

Performance Standards 

Applicable goals would be Goal 6 Air, Water and 

Land Resources Quality and 13 Energy. This 

complies with both because the clarification will 

help align the standards with other existing State 

requirements.  

7 Restaurant Parking The applicable goal would be Goal 9 Economy of 

the State. This complies with the Goal because it 

makes Millersburg’s requirements more closely 

aligned with Albany’s and makes property in the 

City more attractive to restaurant businesses.    

8 Temporary Signs/ROW 

Signs 

Applicable goals would be Goal 2 Land Use 

Planning, 9 Economy of the State, and 12 

Transportation. This complies with these Goals 

because the rules regarding temporary signs are 

currently confusing. These will align better with 

Goal 2 when they are clear. The code revision is 

intended to curtail a problem the City is having 

with a plethora of temporary signs littering the 

51

Item 5)

Page 28 of 67



streets. Stronger regulations will create a cleaner 

streetscape which will help attract more business, 

thus helping the economy. Lastly, many of the 

illegal signs are placed within the right-of-way 

which could impact safety. Removing them will 

address Goal 12 concerns regarding safety.    

9 Blade Banner Signs See above.  

10 Revised Single Family 

Home Design Standards 

Applicable goals would be Goal 10 Housing, and 

14 Urbanization. This complies with both. It is 

popular to argue that higher standards could raise 

the cost of housing. However, the additional 

requirements are structured so there are several 

options that would comply, many of which are not 

expensive, and most of which are standard 

features on many of the homes that are currently 

built in the City. These would pertain only to single-

family homes, not multi-family. This complies with 

Goal 10. 

11 Additional Lot Standards Applicable goals would be Goal 10 Housing and 

14 Urbanization. This complies with both because 

the change only assures that small remnant lots 

are not created through the partition or subdivision 

process. These may become maintenance issues 

for the City. Developers also may use this loophole 

as a or creative way to sidestep required 

processes, like wetlands or frontage fees.  

Therefore, this will help implement State Goals.  

12 Modifying Land Use 

Approvals 

The revision to the text is not changing a 

requirement, just clarifying the existing provision. 

Therefore, the change will implement land use 

modifications and is fully consistent with State 

Goals.   

13 Additional Subdivision 

and Partition Criteria 

This change is moving an existing standard to the 

criteria section. The revision to the text is therefore, 

not changing a requirement, just clarifying the 

existing provision. Therefore, the change will be 

fully consistent with the State Goals because it was 

consistent when the Code was adopted.   

14 Caretakers’ revisions The applicable goal would be Goal 10 Housing 

and to a small extent Goal 9 Economy of the Sate. 

52

Item 5)

Page 29 of 67



The change does not change where they can be 

placed but clarifies that a caretaker’s unit must 

have some relationship to the business and cannot 

just be a residential use that happens to be on a 

commercial property. An example would be a 

caretaker in a storage facility. While this revision 

has added some additional regulations for 

caretaker’s units, it should not play a significant 

role in limiting the use of caretaker’s units. 

Especially given that caretaker’s units are not very 

common, so this change will not impact a 

significant amount of housing stock in the 

community. Thus, the change is consistent with 

Goal 10. Regarding Goal 9, the use of caretaker’s 

units may help some business come to Millersburg, 

and therefore help the economy. This change is 

consistent with this Goal as well.     

15 Floodplain Development 

Permit details added 

The applicable Goal for this revision would be 

Goal 7 Areas Subject to Natural Disasters and 

Hazards. This change did not alter any regulations. 

Our Flood Code section was taken almost directly 

from the FEMA regulations (as required by the 

State) with little deviation. Floodplain 

Development Permits were required in the Code, 

but there was no process for how to apply for 

Floodplain Development Permits. This was added. 

This does not change any of the regulations. A 

clear process for the application will better 

implement the intent of the Goal.  

16 Driveway pavement The applicable Goals for this revision are Goal 10 

Housing and Goal 12 Transportation. This revision 

clarifies that driveways need to be paved unless 

they are rural in nature (on large lots). This will 

reduce maintenance needs on roads because 

gravel on the roadways will be reduced, and 

gravel damages streets. The change will also help 

urban homes be more consistent, helping to 

implement Goal 10.   

 

 

53

Item 5)

Page 30 of 67



FINDING: Based on the analysis above, the project meets the required criteria. 

 

(4) The amendment is appropriate as measured by at least one of the following 

criteria: 

a. It corrects identified error(s) in the provisions of the Plan. 

b. It represents a logical implementation of the Plan. 

c. It is mandated by changes in Federal, State, or local law. 

d. It is otherwise deemed by the City Council to be desirable, 

appropriate, and proper. 

 

ANALYSIS: There are 16 revisions proposed. The table below shows details.  

 

Table 4- Criteria 4 Analysis 

 Topic Analysis 

A 1, 4, 5, 6, 10, 11, 

12, 13, 15, 16 

These revisions are all correcting some kind of 

error identified in the Code 

B 1, 2, 3 These changes are proposed to better 

implement the Code.   

C 15 This revision will better implement State 

requirements for floodplains.  

D 1, 7, 8, 

9, 14  

These changes are intended to better 

implement the direction of the City Council.  

  

FINDING: Based on the analysis above, the project meets the required criteria. 

III. STAFF RECOMMENDATION TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

Based on the above findings of fact, the proposed text code amendment 

satisfies the applicable criteria. Staff recommends that the Planning Commission 

recommend approval of Application No. DC 21-01 to the City Council. 

IV. SUGGESTED MOTION FOR PLANNING COMMISSION 

I motion that the Planning Commission recommend approval of DC 21-01 to the 

City Council because all applicable criteria are met and all findings of fact are 

included in the staff report.  

V. STAFF RECOMMENDATION TO THE CITY COUNCIL (assuming the Planning 

Commission recommends approval) 

Based on the above findings of fact the proposed amendment satisfies the 

applicable criteria. The Planning Commission and staff recommend that the City 

Council approve Application No. DC 21-01 and adopt Ordinance No. 192-21 

54

Item 5)

Page 31 of 67



including an emergency provision to make the Ordinance effective 

immediately upon adoption. 

 
VI. EXHIBITS 

A. Ordinance No. 192-21 with proposed text changes attached 

 

 

55

Item 5)

Page 32 of 67



ORDINANCE NO. 192-21 
 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MILLERSBURG LAND USE 

DEVELOPMENT CODE BY REVISING SECTIONS 1.02.20, 2.03.060, 2.05.060, 

2.08, 3.24.010, 2.10, 2.09.040, 2.12.120, 3.02.040, 3.03.060, 3.03.080, 3.06.020, 

3.06.070, 3.12.020, 4.02.030, 5.01.030, 5.01.060, 5.07.060, 5.08.060, ALL 

REFERENCES TO TWO ZONE NAMES, AND ADDING NEW SECTION 

3.06.130, 3.24.015, 3.28 OF THE MILLERSBURG DEVELOPMENT 

CODE ORDINANCE 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Millersburg in October of 2020 adopted an all-new Development 

Code; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the adopted Development Code contained instances where the Code did not 

fully address the City’s needs, something was inadvertently left out, or something was not 

as clear as it should have been; and, 

 

WHEREAS, amendments are proposed to address sixteen such instances, including 

clarifications to setbacks, some uses in the Commercial Zone, performance standards in 

the General Industrial Zone, restaurant parking, temporary signs, single-family home 

standards, lot standards, land use approval modification standards, subdivision and 

partition standards, caretakers’ requirements, floodplain development requirements, 

driveway standards, and name-only changes to two zones; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) received 

hearing notice thirty-five days in advance of the hearing; and, 

 

WHEREAS, public hearing notices were sent to all addresses in the City, in the form of a 

Measure 56 notice at least twenty days prior to the hearing; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Millersburg Planning Commission recommended to the Millersburg City 

Council on November 16, 2021 that the City Council approve the amendment to the 

sections listed in the title of this Ordinance; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Millersburg Planning Commission and City Council find that the project 

meets all criteria requirements from Section 5.11 of the Millersburg Development Code 

and all findings are included in the staff report dated November 9, 2021. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PEOPLE OF THE CITY OF MILLERSBURG DO 

ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: the Millersburg Development Code is amended as follows:  

 

The Millersburg Development Code shall be amended as shown in Exhibit A to this 

Ordinance.  Exhibit A reflects all changes made during the Planning Commission and City 

Council review process.   

56

Item 5)

Page 33 of 67



 

PASSED by the Council this 14h day of December, 2021. 

 

 

        

Jim Lepin, 

Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

        

Kimberly Wollenburg, 

City Recorder 

57

Item 5)

Page 34 of 67



 

DC 21-01 CODE UPDATE PROPOSED CHANGES (as of December 2, 2021) 

 

Summary Table 1 

 Section Topic Proposed Update 

1 2.03.060 Two Story Setback 

Clarification 

Clarify 8 foot setback to 2 story homes in 2 

residential zones.  Clarify the definition of 

“story.” 

2 2.05 and 

throughout 

Change the name of the 

Residential Mixed-Use 

Zone (RM) to Residential 

Medium (RM) 

 

3 2.09 Change the name of the 

Limited Industrial Zone 

(LI) to Light Industrial (LI) 

 

4 2.08 Revised Uses in the 

Commercial Zone 

Remove some uses from the General 

Commercial zone - no ministorage, auto paint 

uses, RV Parks or similar.   

5 2.09.040 & 

3.24.010 

LI and PF Zone RV Park 

clarifications 

The RV Park standards in Section 3.24 explain 

that LI permits Parks with a CUP, but the LI 

Permitted Uses section does not state that.  

This clarifies that they would not be allowed in 

LI.  Further, the PF zone permits them with a 

CUP but section 3.24 does not state that.   

6 2.10.060(7) GI Environmental 

Performance Standards 

The environmental performance standards 

were removed, it is duplicative as its listed in 

other sections. 

7 3.03 Restaurant Parking Revise restaurant parking requirements. 

8 3.06 Temporary Signs/ROW 

Signs 

Add a new more detailed section on 

Temporary Signs & allow traffic signs in ROW. 

9 3.06 Blade Banner Signs Add details about Blade Banner signs. 

10 3.12.020 Revised Single Family 

Home Design Standards 

Revise SFR design requirements, including a 

requirement for 12” eves and add more 

choices.  

11 4.02.030 Additional Lot Standards Additional lot standards.  Add language for 

remainder lots, phased maps, re-divisions, and 

lot averaging.   

12 5.01.060 Modifying Land Use 

Approvals 

Clarify the difference between a land use 

permit ‘reconsideration’ and a ‘modification.’ 

13 5.07.060 Additional Subdivision 

and Partition Criteria 

Add more partition and subdivision criteria. 

14 1.02  Caretakers revisions Add a definition for “caretakers” and add a 

new section 3.28 with standards for caretakers 

units in the Special Uses section of the code.   

58

Item 5)

Page 35 of 67



15 2.12.120 & 

5.01.030 

Floodplain Development 

Permit details added 

We have specified a process for the review of 

this State required application.   

16 3.03.080 Driveway pavement Add text to 3.03.080(1) to clarify that all 

residential driveways in all zones except the 

RU zone must be paved, including the full 

length  of the driveway to the street apron.  

 

 

Proposed Text Changes 

 

1. 2 Story Setback (changes shown in redline)- 

 

1.02.20 Definitions 

 

Story. That portion of a building included between the upper surface of any floor and 

the upper surface of the floor next above, except that the top-most story shall be that 

portion of a building included between the upper surface of the top-most floor and 

the ceiling or roof above. If the finished floor level directly above a basement or cellar 

is more than six feet above grade as defined herein, such basement or cellar shall 

constitute a story.  For industrial or commercial applications, a ‘story’ shall be 

considered 14 feet.  For example, a 28-foot tower would be considered a two-story 

structure.    

 

2.03.060 Dimensional Standards 

Table 2 - RL Dimensional Standards 
 

RL Zone Dimensional Standards 

Side Yard – two or more stories Any second story (or 

more) shall be at least 8 feet from the property line 

(Interior) 

 8 feet 

 

2.05.060 Dimensional Standards 

Table 4 - RM Dimensional Standards 
 

RM Zone Dimensional Standards 

Side Yard – two or more stories Any second story (or 

more) shall be at least 8 feet from the property line 

(Interior) 

 8 feet 

 

2. Change the name of the Residential Mixed-Use Zone (RM) to Residential Medium (RM).  

The text changes are not shown here, as they are found in numerous places 

throughout the code and would be too voluminous to list here.  

 

59

Item 5)

Page 36 of 67



3. Change the name of the Limited Industrial Zone (LI) to Light Industrial (LI).  

The text changes are not shown here, as they are found in numerous places 

throughout the code and would be too voluminous to list here.  

 

4. Revised Uses General Commercial Zone (changes shown in redline)- 

 

CHAPTER 2.08 GENERAL COMMERCIAL (GC) 

 

2.08.010 Purpose 

The General Commercial Zone is applied to areas suitable to meet a wide range of 

commercial activities to serve the community.  All uses should be a service-type use, 

meaning they should be uses like restaurants, offices, and retail.  Uses should not be 

those which see very little customer interaction such as light manufacturing uses.    

 

2.08.020 Permitted Uses 

The following uses, when developed under the applicable development standards in 

the Code, are permitted in the GC zone: 

(1) Retail trade establishments engaged in selling goods or merchandise to the 

general public for personal or household consumption such as retail groceries, 

hardware stores, department stores, and sporting goods stores. 

(2) Retail service establishments offering services and entertainment to the general 

public for personal or household consumption such as eating and drinking 

establishments, motels and hotels (but excluding recreational vehicle parks 

and campgrounds), personal instructional facilities (instructional classes), 

banks, real estate, and financial services. 

(3) Business service establishments engaged in rendering services to other 

businesses on a fee or contract basis such as building maintenance, 

employment services, and consulting services. 

(4) Professional offices and clinics for medical, dental, legal, engineering, and 

other professions. 

(5) Banks, credit unions, investment firms; real estate offices, mortgage companies, 

title companies, and similar financial-related offices. 

(6) Automobile service station, including towing service and vehicle washing and 

polishing facilities and services. 

(7) Automobile, truck, motorcycle, trailer, agricultural equipment, recreational 

vehicle and boat sales, lease, and rentals. 

(8) Vehicle repair and maintenance, including electric motor repair, paint and 

body shop, tire recapping, and similar automotive repair facilities. 

(9) Construction businesses such as floor laying, building equipment, masonry and 

stone, plumbing, electrical, metal work, or painting. 

(10) Part and accessory sales for automobiles, trucks, motorcycles, trailers, 

agricultural equipment, recreational vehicles, and boats, which include the 

installation, repair or modification of such parts and accessories; but specifically 

prohibiting junk yards, wrecking yards, or auto salvage and restoration yards. 

60

Item 5)

Page 37 of 67



Part and accessory sales which do not include the installation, repair, or 

modification of such items are allowed as a permitted activity. 

(11) Retail tire sales. 

(12) Laundry or dry cleaning. 

(13) Warehouse for short term storage, including mini-warehouses. 

(14) (13) Lumber yard and contracting supplies for lumber, stone, masonry, or 

metal. 

(15) Cabinet shop. 

(16) (14) Interim farm use, subject to the provisions in Chapter 3.21.040, except 

crops may be cultivated for commercial sales or use. 

(17) (15) Utility substations or pumping stations, excluding outdoor storage of 

equipment or materials. 

 

2.08.030 Special Uses 

The following uses, when developed under the applicable development standards 

of this Code and special development requirements, are permitted in the GC zone: 

(1) Partitions, subject to the provisions in Chapter 4.02.050. 

(2) Subdivisions, subject to the applicable provisions of Chapter 4.02.060. 

(3) Home occupations within a pre-existing residence, subject to the provisions of 

Chapter 3.13. 

(4) Temporary uses, subject to provisions in Chapter 3.17. 

(5) Bed and breakfast, subject to provisions in Chapter 3.18 and located within a 

preexisting residence. 

(6) House of worship, subject to provisions in Chapter 3.19. 

(7) Recreational vehicle park, subject to provisions in Section 3.24. 

(8) (7) Wireless communication facilities, subject to provisions in Section 3.27. 

 

2.08.040 Conditional Uses 

The following uses require approval of a Conditional Use Permit and are subject to a 

Site Development Review: 

(1) Dwelling units shall be permitted subject to one of the following provisions: 

a. A dwelling unit may be established if it is necessary and clearly accessory 

and subordinate to a permitted commercial use. 

b. A dwelling unit not accessory and subordinate to a permitted 

commercial use may be established on the second or upper floors of a 

permitted commercial use. 

(2) All manufacturing, warehousing, wholesaling, compounding, assembling, 

processing, storing, researching, or testing uses provided all operations except 

off- street parking and temporary activities, with or without outdoor storage. 

(3) (2) Public and private utility buildings and structures, including but not limited 

to electric substations, telephone exchanges, and communications 

antennas or towers. 

61

Item 5)

Page 38 of 67



(4) (3) Publicly owned and operated facilities or structures, including 

government offices and stations, fire stations, public use buildings, and 

recreation sites excluding water and sewage treatment facilities. 

(5) (4)  Houses of worship, subject to provisions in Chapter 3.19. 

 

5. LI and PF Zone RV Park clarifications (changes shown in redline)- 

 

The removal of the use form the GC Zone is shown above in section 5.   

 

 CHAPTER 3.24 RECREATIONAL VEHICLE PARK STANDARDS 

 

3.24.010 Purpose 

Oregon Revised Statutes Chapter 446 and Oregon Administrative Rules Chapter 918, 

Division 650 specify the standards and regulations for Recreational Vehicle (RV) use in 

the State of Oregon.  

 

3.24.015 Standards 

Approved RV parks shall comply with the State of Oregon Standards and the 

standards of this Section: 

 

(1) Where Permitted: RV Parks may be permitted in the Limited Industrial Zone – LI 

Public Facilities Zone (PF) zone adjacent to a City Arterial Street in accordance with 

the Conditional Use procedures of Section 5.04. 

 

(2) Each RV space shall be not less than 1,000 square feet exclusive of any common 

park areas. 

 

(3) Roadways shall be paved and designed to permit easy access to each RV space. 

Road widths shall meet the requirements for local residential streets. All other 

design features shall meet fire apparatus access road requirements 

 

(4) Each RV space shall be paved and designed to provide runoff of surface water. 

All unpaved areas shall be landscaped, and the Park shall be screened on all 

sides by a 6-foot-high sight-obscuring hedge or fence. 

 

(5) The total number of parking spaces in the Park shall be equal to 1.25 spaces per 

RV space. All parking spaces shall be paved. 

 

(6) Each RV space shall be provided with electrical service, piped potable water, and 

sewage disposal service. All RVs with service connections staying in the Park shall be 

connected to these services. 

 

(7) The Park shall be maintained in a neat appearance at all times. There shall be no 

outside storage of materials or equipment. Trash receptacles shall be provided at 

62

Item 5)

Page 39 of 67



convenient locations and in adequate number and capacity. 

 

(8) RVs are limited to a stay of no more than six months in any 12-month period. 

 

(9) The Park shall provide toilets, lavatories, and showers for each sex in ratios 

specified by the State of Oregon for each recreational vehicle space. The toilets 

and showers shall afford privacy, and the showers shall be provided with private 

dressing rooms. Facilities for each sex shall be located in separate buildings, or, if in 

the same building, shall be separated by a soundproof wall. 

 

(10) The Park shall provide one utility building or room containing three clothes 

washing machines, one clothes drying machine, and 50 square feet of space for 

each 50 recreational vehicle spaces. 

 

(11) Public building spaces shall be lighted at all times of night and day; shall be 

ventilated; shall be provided with heating facilities which shall maintain a room 

temperature no lower than 65° F; shall have a floor of waterproof material; shall 

have sanitary ceiling, floor, and wall surfaces; and shall be provided with adequate 

floor drains to permit easy cleaning. 

 

6. GI Environmental Performance Standards (changes shown in redline)- 

 

CHAPTER 2.10 GENERAL INDUSTRIAL ZONE (GI) 

 

2.10.040 Conditional Uses 

The following uses require approval of a Conditional Use Permit: 

(1) Extraction and processing of minerals, rock, or other earth products. 

(2) Recycling centers greater than 5,000 feet of enclosed area, automotive 

dismantling, wrecking and salvage yard, and refuse transfer facility. 

(3) Petroleum products storage and distribution, including asphalt plants. 

(4) Manufacturing, processing, storage of explosives, or EPCRA Section 302 - 

Extremely Hazardous Substances when located within 300 feet of residentially 

zoned land. 

(5) Feed and seed facilities, grain elevators and storage; including agricultural 

chemical, fertilizer, insecticide storage and distribution, excluding ammonium 

nitrate. 

(6) Wholesale and distribution involving these activities. 

(7) A caretaker’s residence, either free-standing or incorporated into another 

building, for an established or concurrently being developed industrial use, 

subject to the provisions of Chapter 3.27. 

 

2.10.060 Development Standards 

All development in the GI zone shall comply with the following specific standards: 

 

63

Item 5)

Page 40 of 67



(7) Environmental performance standards may limit placement of certain uses in 

the zone if the site is located within 300 feet of residentially zoned land.  

 

CHAPTER 2.09 LIMITED INDUSTRIAL ZONE (LI) 

 

2.09.040 Conditional Uses 

The following uses require approval of a conditional use permit and are subject to 

Site Development Review: 

(1) Publicly owned and operated facilities or structures, including government 

offices and stations, public use buildings, and recreation sites excluding 

water and sewage treatment facilities.  

(2) Agricultural chemical, fertilizer, insecticide storage, and distribution, 

excluding ammonium nitrate.  

(3) Lumber yard and contracting supplies for lumber, stone, masonry, or metal. 

(4) A caretaker’s residence, either free-standing or incorporated into another 

building, for an established or concurrently being developed industrial use, 

subject to the provisions of Chapter 3.27. 

(5) Manufacturing, processing, storage of explosives, or EPCRA Section 302 - 

Extremely Hazardous Substances when located within 300 feet of 

residentially zoned land. 

 

7. Restaurant Parking (changes shown in redline)- 

 

Section 3.03.060 Off-Street Vehicle and Bicycle Parking Requirements 

 
Table 14- Vehicle and Bicycle Parking Space Requirements 

M Eating and drinking 

establishments including food 

pods 

Greater of 1 space per 4 seats, or, 1 space 

per 400 sq ft 1 per 800 sq ft for carryout and 

1 per 200 for sit down of gross floor area  

 

 

8. Temporary Signs (changes shown in redline)-  

 

Chapter 1.02.020 Definitions 

 

Sign (Sign). Any writing, including letter, word, or numeral; pictorial presentation, 

including illustration or decoration; emblem, symbol, or trademark; banner or 

pennant; or any other device, figure, or similar thing which is a structure or any part 

thereof, or is attached to, painted on, or in any other manner represented on a 

64

Item 5)

Page 41 of 67



building, structure, or device; and is used to announce, direct attention to, or 

advertise; and is visible from any City or County public right-of-way. 

 

Portable Sign (Sign). Any sign that is not originally designed to be permanently affixed 

to a building, structure, or the ground; a sign originally designed, regardless of its 

current modification, to be moved from place to place. These signs include, but are 

not limited to, A-frame or sandwich board signs, signs attached to wood or metal 

frames and designed to be self-supporting and movable, and also including trailer 

reader boards. Portable signs are also not to be considered temporary signs as 

defined and used in this Code. 

 

Temporary Sign. A sign not permanently affixed to a structure on a property. These 

signs primarily include, but are not limited to, canvas, cloth, or paper banners or 

posters hung on a building wall or on a permanent pole such as on a free-standing 

sign support. Also see Portable Sign (Signs). 

 

Chapter 3.06  SIGNS 

3.06.020 Definitions 

 

Portable Sign (Sign). Any sign that is not originally designed to be permanently affixed 

to a building, structure, or the ground; a sign originally designed, regardless of its 

current modification, to be moved from place to place. These signs include, but are 

not limited to, A-frame or sandwich board signs, signs attached to wood or metal 

frames and designed to be self-supporting and movable, and also including trailer 

reader boards. Portable signs are not to be considered temporary signs as defined 

and used in this Code. 

Temporary Sign. A sign not permanently affixed to a structure on a property. These 

signs primarily include, but are not limited to, canvas, cloth, or paper banners or 

posters hung on a building wall or on a permanent pole such as on a free-standing 

sign support. Also see Portable Sign (Signs). 

 

3.06.070 Prohibited Signs 

The following signs are prohibited in all zones: 

(1) Balloons or similar types of tethered objects. 

(2) Portable or temporary signs, except where allowed as a part of a permitted 

temporary business or otherwise permitted by Municipal Code Section 3.06.130. 

(3) Roof signs. 

(4) Signs that emit odor, visible matter, or sound; however, an intercom system for 

customers remaining in their vehicles, such as used in banks and "drive through" 

restaurants, shall be allowed. 

(5) Signs that use or employ side guy lines of any type. 

(6) Signs that obstruct any fire escape, required exit, window, or door opening used 

as a means of egress. 

65

Item 5)

Page 42 of 67



(7) Signs closer than 36-inches horizontally 

or vertically from any overhead power line or public utility guy wire. 

(8) The use of a vehicle or trailer parked on a public right-of-way or public property, 

or on private property so as to be visible from a public right-of-way which has 

attached thereto or located thereon any sign or advertising device for the 

basic purpose of providing advertisement of products or directing people to a 

business or activity. This provision applies where the primary purpose of the 

vehicle is for advertising purposes and is not intended to prohibit any form of 

vehicular sign, which is primarily used for business purposes other than 

advertising. 

(9) Rotating/revolving signs, except by conditional use permit per Section 3.06.120. 

(10) Flashing signs, except by conditional use permit per Section 3.06.120. 

(11) Private signs that project into or over driveways and public rights-of-way, 

except signs under a canopy that project over a public sidewalk and the 

bottom of the sign is at least 8-feet above the sidewalk. 

(12) Signs that obstruct a required vision clearance area, obstruct a vehicle driver's 

view of official traffic control signs, or which present a traffic hazard. 

(13) Signs that interfere with, imitate, or resemble any official traffic control sign, 

signal or device, emergency lights, or appear to direct traffic. 

(14) Signs attached to any pole, post, utility pole, or placed on its own stake and 

placed into the ground in the public right-of-way.  This does not include traffic 

control or other City/County/State signs within the right-of-way.   

(15) Message signs, except by conditional use permit per Section 3.06.120. 

(16) Any sign on unimproved property, unless as an incidental sign. 

(17) Signs mounted on fences in accordance with Section 3.07.080. 

(18) Inflatable advertising signs including animal shaped inflatables and air-dancers 

(aka. wacky flailing arm inflatable tube men) in all non-residential zones. 

 

3.06.130 Temporary Signs  

Temporary signs are prohibited except as permitted by this section.  The following 

signs shall comply with all provisions and regulations of this chapter; however, no fee, 

permit, or application is required.  Registration for all temporary signs is required. 

Registration must occur at the Millersburg City Hall and be completed and filed prior 

to erecting the temporary signs.  These include portable signs such as A-frame or 

sandwich board signs.   

 

1. Generally. 

a. Illumination: No temporary sign shall be internally or externally illuminated. 

b. Location: 

i. No temporary sign shall be placed within, extend into, or over the 

public right-of-way of any street except allowed temporary traffic 

control signs.   

ii. Signs allowed in the right-of-way for temporary traffic control shall 

provide a minimum of 5 feet of clear passage for pedestrians on the 

66

Item 5)

Page 43 of 67



sidewalk where a sidewalk exists and shall come no closer than 2 feet 

from areas subject to vehicular travel. 

iii. No temporary sign shall extend into the vision clearance area. 

c. Maintenance: Temporary signs shall be kept neat, clean and in good repair. 

Signs which are faded, torn, damaged or otherwise unsightly or in a state of 

disrepair shall be immediately repaired or removed. 

d. Placement: Temporary signs shall not be attached to trees, shrubbery, utility 

poles, or traffic control signs or devices. They shall not obstruct or obscure 

primary signs on adjacent premises. 

e. All temporary signs in non-residential zones must be registered with the 

Community Development Department prior to placement in order to track 

the duration of the placement.  Residential properties are not required to 

register temporary signage.    

f. Each non-residential property shall be limited to no more 90 days for any 

combination of temporary signage per calendar year.  This can be used in 

smaller intervals or all at once, at the applicant’s discretion.  This does not 

apply to election signs, pennants/streamers, or real estate signs.  

 

2. Allowed Temporary Signage. 

a. In a residential zone, limited temporary signage is permitted pursuant to the 

following standards. This signage shall not be restricted by content, but is 

typically used to advertise real estate sales, political or ideological positions, 

garage sales, home construction or remodeling, farm stands, etc. Standards 

for residential temporary signs include: 

i. Election signs shall not be erected more than 90 days prior to an 

election and removed within five days following the election.  

ii. Real Estate signs shall be removed no more than 15 days from the sale 

(close of escrow), lease or rental of the property. 

iii. Contractor signs shall be removed within seven days of completion of 

any construction or remodeling.  

 

b. In any commercial, public, or industrial zone, limited temporary signage is 

permitted pursuant to the following standards. This signage shall not be 

restricted by content, but is typically used to advertise real estate, political 

or ideological positions, construction or remodeling, help wanted, or 

temporary activities. Standards include: 

i. There shall be no more than one temporary sign per property even if 

more than 1 business is located on the property.  

ii. Signs shall not exceed six square feet per side. 

iii. Signs intended to advertise commercial services are prohibited, unless 

related to fund-raising for a non-profit organization or institution.   

iv. Election signs shall not be erected more than 90 days prior to an 

election and removed within five days following the election.   

67

Item 5)

Page 44 of 67



v. Real Estate shall be removed no more than 15 days from the sale, 

lease or rental of the property. 

vi. Contractor signs shall be removed within seven days of completion of 

any construction or remodeling.  

vii. An additional sign of the same size may be erected if the property 

borders a second street and the signs are not visible simultaneously.  

viii. Temporary uses such as Christmas tree sales, pumpkin sales, etc. are 

permitted two signs not to exceed 32 square feet per side each.  The 

signage shall be allowed for the same duration as the temporary use; 

however, these signs do count towards the 90-day maximum 

permitted by Section 3.06.130.1.f. 

ix. Pennants and Streamers may be used as part of an opening or 

promotional event only and are not counted as a temporary sign for 

purposes of the 90 day duration maximum permitted by Section 

3.06.130.1.f.. 

x. Blade Banner signs are considered temporary signs and shall meet all 

regulations herein.  In no case shall blade banner signs be taller than 

7 feet.   

 

c. Fair/Market Vendor Signs. In addition to any other temporary sign 

requirement, the following additional requirements apply: (For purposes of 

this subsection, "vendor" includes persons selling or displaying information or 

products) 

i. The fair or market is a temporary activity which does not require 

permanent site improvements. 

ii. The fair or market shall have no more than 3 offsite or onsite signs 

advertising the event, individual vendors are not permitted to use any 

additional off site signage (including yard signs on private property). 

iii. There are no regulations for signs within the event area, except that 

no sign shall be higher than 10 feet from the ground surface. 

iv. All temporary signage (except those within the event space) are 

limited by the 90 days permitted by Section 3.06.130.1.f. These are 

considered cumulative and not separate regarding the 

accumulation of the 90 days permitted by Section 3.06.130.1.f. 

 

d. Temporary Signs Requiring Permit.  The City Manager may allow temporary 

signs larger than those allowed by this Section (but not additional signs or to 

allow a sign to be posted for a longer duration than the times listed in this 

section) with a sign permit. This signage shall not be restricted by content, 

but is usually and customarily used to advertise special events and store 

openings on banners. The City Manager shall allow the placement of such 

signs only if the City Manager finds that the proposed sign will not materially 

impair the purposes of the Sign Code.   

 

68

Item 5)

Page 45 of 67



e. Additional Duration.  Additional duration of temporary sign placement 

cannot be added through a sign variance process.     

 

3. Sign Collection and Retrieval.  Signs determined to be in violation will be removed 

and disposed of.  See Municipal Code Title 5.10. 

 

 

9. Blade Banner Signs (changes shown in redline)-  

 

Chapter 3.06 Signs 

 

3.06.020 Definitions 

Blade Banner Signs: aka Feather Flag, or Feather Blade signs are signs often of a 

temporary nature, that consist of fabric attached to a pole.  The pole is typically 

about 6-8 feet in height where the sign mounts in a vertical nature. 

 

10. Single Family residential Design Changes (changes shown in redline)- 

 

CHAPTER 3.12 DESIGN STANDARDS FOR HOMES ON INDIVIDUAL LOTS 

 

3.12.020 General Standards – All Single-family and Duplex Homes 

All new site-built single-family and duplex homes and modular homes constructed or 

located within the City shall have include:  

(1) At least a two-car garage for each dwelling unit 

(2) Eaves that project at least 12” 

(3) No garage shall be more than 65% of the façade width. 

(4) All trim shall be at least 4 inches 

(5)  and shall also utilize at least two of the following design features A garage 

up to 50% of the length of the facade shall meet at least 4 of the following 

design standards.  A garage more than 50% of the facade must meet at 

least 5 of the following design standards to provide visual relief along the 

font of the dwelling: 

a. Dormers, which are projecting structures built out from a sloping roof 

housing a vertical window 

b. Gables, which is a roof sloping downward in two parts from a central 

ridge, so as to form a gable at each end 

c. Recessed entries (minimum 2 feet) 

d. Covered porch entry (minimum 48 square feet) 

e. Cupolas 

f. Wrapped Decorative Pillars or posts 

g. Bay or bow windows 

h. Eaves greater than (minimum 12” projection) 

i. Off-set on building face or roof (minimum 16”) 

69

Item 5)

Page 46 of 67



j. Windows and doors represent a minimum of 15% of the façade, not 

including the roof or gables 

k. Stone, brick or other similar material used on the façade 

l. Garage doors designed to resemble 2 smaller garage doors  

m. A third garage door (or second door of a 3 car garage) that is 

recessed a minimum of 2 feet 

n. Decorative roofline elements including roof brackets 

o. Exterior chimney of brick, stone, composite masonry or similar 

materials (viable from the façade) 

p. Tower, either square, rectangular, circular or polygonal in form 

q. Lintel, arch, or similar decorative header casing on windows, the main 

entry door, portico, garage door(s), or other opening in the wall plane 

r. Variation in wall cladding, wall-surface pattern, or decorative 

materials such as shakes, shingles, brick, stone or other similar 

 

11.   Additional Lot Standards (changes shown in redline)- 

 

4.02.030 Standards for Lots or Parcels 

The following standards shall apply to all Partitions and Subdivisions. 

 

(8) Re-Division. When subdividing or partitioning into large lots which may be re-

subdivided, the City shall require that the design of the lots be of a size and 

shape to allow for the subsequent division of any parcel into lots of smaller size 

and the creation and extension of future streets. 

 

(9) Remainder areas.  When subdividing or partitioning property, any area within 

the tentative/final plat that is not proposed to be part of a lot, parcel, or tract 

is a remainder area.  Tracts must serve a function.  Any such remainder area 

must meet the minimum requirements of this Code, including any requirements 

by the zone such as lot size or the requirement to connect to public water 

and/or sanitary sewer. 

 

(10) Lot Averaging. Lot averaging is not permitted.  All lots must meet the minimum 

lot size requirements of the zone.   

 

(11) Phased Development. 

1. The Approval Authority may approve a time schedule for developing a 

subdivision in phases, but in no case shall the actual construction time period 

for any phase be greater than two years without reapplying for a tentative plat.  

All phasing must be approved with the entitlement.  Phasing proposed after 

entitlement approval requires a project modification regulated by section 

5.16.060. 

2. The criteria for approving a phased subdivision (in addition to all standard 

subdivision criteria) review proposal are: 

70

Item 5)

Page 47 of 67



a. The public facilities shall be scheduled to be constructed in conjunction 

with or prior to each phase to ensure provision of public facilities prior to 

building occupancy; 

b. The development and occupancy of any phase shall not be dependent 

on the use of temporary public facilities: 

i. For purposes of this subsection, a temporary public facility is an 

interim facility not constructed to the applicable City or district 

standard; and 

ii. The phased development shall not result in requiring the City or 

other property owners to construct public facilities that were 

required as a part of the approval of the preliminary plat. 

3. The application for phased development approval shall be reviewed 

concurrently with the preliminary plat application and the decision may be 

appealed in the same manner as the preliminary plat. 

 

12. Modifying a land use decision (changes shown in redline)- 

 

5.01.060 Modifying Reconsideration of a Land Use Decision 

(1) A reconsideration of an approved project is used when a project has been 

recently approved by a decision body, and is found to have a glaring error 

(applicant or City error) that requires the decision body to re-review the approval.  

Alternatively, an applicant requesting to substantially change a site plan, building 

size, or other aspect of the project after the project is approved, but is not the 

result of an error in the processing of the project, would use the process outlined 

in Section 5.16.060.   Conditions of approval imposed in a land use decision may 

be modified by using the process outlined in 5.15.060. 

(2) The applicant shall have the legal right to represent all undeveloped land within 

the original area subject of the application. 

(3) Applications for modification reconsideration shall only be used in cases in which 

the applicant  requests reconsideration of a specific condition(s) of approval. 

Only those conditions shall be considered for change by the decision-making 

body. 

(4) A reconsideration must be submitted prior to the end of the appeal period and 

be treated as an appeal to the approval.   

(4)(5) Any other change requested may only be considered by filing a new 

application. 

 

 

13. Additional Partition and Subdivision Criteria (changes shown in redline)- 

 

5.07.060 Decision Criteria 

Approval of a partition shall be subject to the following decision criteria: 

71

Item 5)

Page 48 of 67



(1) Each parcel shall satisfy the dimensional standards of the applicable zone, 

unless a variance from these standards is approved. 

(2) The parcels shall meet the Development Standards for Land Division of Chapter 

4.02. 

(3) Existing dwellings structures and accessory structures shall comply with the 

setback requirements of the applicable zone, including accessory structures 

which have a setback established by the building size, unless a variance from 

the requirements is approved. 

(4) Adequate public facilities, including access, shall be available to serve the 

existing and newly created parcels. If adjacent properties are undeveloped or 

landlocked, extending appropriate access to those properties will be required 

in accordance with adopted City policy. 

(5) Adjoining land can be developed or is provided access that will allow its 

development in accordance with this Code. 

 

5.08.060 Decision Criteria 

Approval of a Subdivision or PUD shall be subject to the following decision criteria: 

(1) Each parcel shall satisfy the dimensional standards of the applicable zone, 

unless a variance from these standards is approved. 

(2) The parcels shall meet the Development Standards for Land Division of Chapter 

4.02. 

(3) Existing buildings shall comply with the setback requirements of the applicable 

zone, unless a variance from the requirements is approved. 

(4) Adequate public facilities, including access, shall be available to serve the 

existing and newly created parcels. If adjacent properties are undeveloped or 

landlocked, extending appropriate access to those properties will be required 

in accordance with adopted City policy. Adequate means the development 

will not cause streets (including sidewalks, intersections, and traffic control 

devices), sewer facilities, water facilities, and storm drainage facilities to 

exceed the relevant capacity for each type of facility established in the most 

recently adopted, Sewer Master Plan, Water Master Plan, Storm Water Master 

Plan, and the Transportation System Plan development in accordance with the 

State Transportation Planning Rule for which the determination will be made in 

accordance with Section 3.02.120. Adequacy can be established in three 

ways: 

a. Professional Engineering analysis determining the subdivision will not 

exceed the capacity of existing and future public facilities as projected 

in the most recently adopted water, sewer, and stormwater master plans 

and transportation system plan; 

 

b. Professional Engineering analysis determining what improvements will be 

required to increase the capacity of public facilities to adequately 

accommodate the subdivision and how those will be financed; or 

c. A combination of both a and b. 

72

Item 5)

Page 49 of 67



(5) Adjoining land can be developed or is provided access that will allow its 

development in accordance with this Code. 

 

(5)(6) PUD. Approval of a planned unit development shall require compliance with 

the following in addition to the criteria listed above: 

a. Conformance with provisions of 4.02.010 (Purpose Statement). 

b. The proposal shall comply with the applicable development and layout 

provisions contained in Section 4.02.030 of this Code. 

c. Infrastructure shall be available and appropriate to serve the proposed 

development. 

 

14. Caretakers Units (changes shown in redline)- 

 

Note: In all zones where a caretaker’s use is permitted, clarify that it is a special use 

that has standards in the new Chapter 3.28 shown below.   

 

CHAPTER 1.02 Definitions 

 

Caretaker/ Caretakers unit. A caretaker is a person or persons employed principally 

on the lot for purposes of care and protection of plants, buildings, equipment, or 

other facilities on- site or on contiguous lots under the same ownership.  A dwelling 

unit for a caretaker is a structure on the premises being cared for or guarded and is 

occupied exclusively by a caretaker and his/her family. 

 

CHAPTER 3.28 CARETAKERS UNITS 

 

3.28.010 Introduction and Purpose 

The purpose of this Chapter is to establish the regulations, standards and 

circumstances under which a dwelling unit accessory to the main business on a lot 

may be established for the purpose of providing continuous on- site care for 

property. 

 

3.28.020 General Standards 

Caretaker units may be allowed subject to a Conditional Use Permit in designated 

zones subject to the following standards: 

 

(1) Number allowed. Only 1 caretaker unit per lot shall be allowed. 

(2) Nature of structure. Caretakers units may be detached, attached (to a 

primary use structure, such as in storage units), or a HUD approved 

manufactured home.  Use of a travel trailer is not permitted.  Unless set on a 

73

Item 5)

Page 50 of 67



ground level foundation, any manufactured home shall have skirting that in 

design, color, and texture appears to be an integral part of the adjacent 

exterior wall of the manufactured home. 

(3) Employment. The caretaker shall be employed principally on the lot for 

purposes of care and protection of persons, plants, animals, equipment, or 

other facilities on- site or on contiguous lots under the same ownership. 

Caretaker housing shall be allowed only where the principal commercial, 

industrial, or institutional use of the site involves operations, equipment or other 

resources that require twenty-four (24) hour oversight. 

(4) Permitted Use. The caretaker unit shall be on a lot or building site with an 

approved, permitted use and occupied exclusively by a caretaker and 

his/her family. 

(5) Sewer. All caretakers’ units shall be served by public sewer.  

(6) Floor Area. The maximum floor area for a caretaker unit shall be 1,200 square 

feet. 

(7) Parking. A minimum of 1 covered off-street parking space shall be provided 

for the caretaker unit. 

(8) Rentals. The caretaker unit shall not be separately rented let, or leased to other 

than the caretaker whether compensation be direct or indirect. 

(9) Subdivisions.  Subsequent subdivisions which divide a separate lot or parcel for 

a caretaker unit shall not be permitted. 

(10) Deed Restrictions. The applicant shall record a deed restriction as a condition 

of project approval, stating that the caretaker unit shall not be rented to other 

than the caretaker. 

(11) Ceasing of Operations- Modular or Portable Unit. Upon termination of the 

principal use, If the caretaker’s unit was portable or a manufactured home, 

the structure shall be removed from the property within 90 days. 

(12) Ceasing of Operations- Stick Built.  Upon termination of the principal use, for 

any stick-built structure used for the caretaker’s unit, the right to use the 

caretaker’s unit as residential shall expire within 45 days.  In the event that the 

caretaker’s unit is vacant for a period of more than 45 days, the caretaker’s 

use for that structure shall terminate.  Any further use of the structure for 

caretaker’s purposes will require a new action by the Planning Commission.   

 
15. Floodplain Development Permits (changes shown in redline)- 

 

2.12.120 Establishment of a Development Permit 

(1) Floodplain Development Permit Required. A development permit shall be 

obtained before construction or development begins, more specifically 

before building permits are issued within any area horizontally within the 

special flood hazard area established in Section 2.12.040. The development 

permit shall be required for all structures, including manufactured dwellings, 

and for all other development, as defined in Section 2.12.030, including       fill 

and other development activities. 

74

Item 5)

Page 51 of 67



(2) Application for a Development Permit. Application for a development 

permit is a Type I process, may be made on forms furnished by the 

Floodplain Administrator and may include, but  not be limited to, plans in 

duplicate drawn to scale showing the nature, location, dimensions, and 

elevations of the area in question; existing or proposed structures, fill, storage 

of materials, drainage facilities, and the location of the foregoing. 

Specifically, the following information is required: 

a. In riverine flood zones, the proposed elevation (in relation to mean sea 

level), of the lowest floor (including basement) and all attendant utilities 

of all new and substantially improved structures; in accordance with 

the requirements of Section 2.12.100(b)2. 

b. Proposed elevation in relation to mean sea level to which any non-

residential structure will be flood proofed. 

c. Certification by a registered professional engineer or architect licensed 

in the State of Oregon that the flood proofing methods proposed for 

any non- residential structure meet the floodproofing criteria for non-

residential structures in Section 2.12.180(C). 

d. Description of the extent to which any watercourse will be 

altered or                          relocated. 

e. Base Flood Elevation data for subdivision proposals or other 

development                                       when required per Sections 2.12.100(B)1, and 

2.12.140. 

f. Substantial improvement calculation for any improvement, 

addition,                                               reconstruction, renovation, or rehabilitation of an 

existing structure. 

g. The amount and location of any fill or excavation activities proposed. 

 

 

5.01.030 Table of Land Use Application Procedures 

Table 22 - Land Use Application Procedures 
 

Land Use Application Procedures 

Land Use 

Action 
Type Staff 

Planning 

Commission 
City Council 

Floodplain 

Development 

Permit 

Type - I Final Decision No Role No Role 

 

 

16. Residential Driveway Paving (changes shown in redline)- 

 

3.02.040 Access Standards 

(1) Single-family Residence and Duplex Access Standards: 

75

Item 5)

Page 52 of 67



a. Driveway aprons shall be no more than 26 feet in width and not less than 10 feet 

in width. All driveway aprons must be set back at least five feet from the side 

property line and 20 feet from the tangent of the property lines as they intersect 

adjacent to a corner lot. Driveway aprons for For the frontage of a lots of at least 

10,000 square feet and abutting a residential street may be wider than 26 feet if: 

at least two Two 20-foot parking spaces must be are available on the residential 

street frontage. Driveways aprons must be set back at least five feet from the 

side property line. Driveways aprons must be set back 20 feet from the tangent 

of the property lines as they intersect adjacent to a corner lot. Driveways aprons 

shall be at least 10 feet in width. If the required setbacks and on street parking 

requirements are met, all other frontage may be used for driveway aprons. 

b. For the frontage of a lot less than 10,000 square feet or abutting a collector or 

arterial street: One 26-foot driveway apron no more than 26 feet wide or a 

circular driveway with the lane 12-15 feet wide.  

c. Driveways shall be limited to off-street parking and the parking and storage of 

recreational vehicles. 

d.     Driveway grades shall not exceed 15%. 

 

3.03.080 Parking, Driveway, and Loading Area Development Requirements 

All parking and loading areas shall be developed and maintained as follows: 

 

(1) Surfacing. All driveways (full length of the driveway), parking, and loading areas, for all 

uses including single family residential (except in the RU Zone), shall have a durable hard 

surface of asphaltic cement, concrete pavers, or concrete, or other concrete materials. 

Surface improvements shall conform to the following: 

 

a. Paving Improvements. Paving shall comply with adopted Engineering Standards of 

the City of Millersburg. 

b. Timing. Unless modified by a variance or a site development review, or bonded per 

City requirements, all driveways and off-street parking and loading areas shall be 

improved prior to occupancy of the primary structure. 

c. Surfacing Options for Industrial Zone. The City Engineer may allow the use of a 

graveled parking area in the industrial zones, provided all customer and employee 

parking areas are paved and provided surface drainage is addressed per 

Engineering Standards and at least 20-feet of each access driveway connecting 

with a public street is paved. 

76

Item 5)

Page 53 of 67



TO: Millersburg City Council 

VIA: Kevin Kreitman, City Manager 

FROM: Janelle Booth, Assistant City Manager/City Engineer 

DATE: December 9 for the December 14, 2021 City Council Meeting 

SUBJECT: Fire Station 15 Project Report 

 

Project Summary:   

 

Architect:  Soderstrom 

Owner’s Representative:  David Evans and Associates 

Contractor:  Wildish Building Company 

Construction Notice to Proceed Date:  4/1/2021 

Construction Completion Date:  5/31/2022 

Project Description:  Construction of a 10,200 square foot new fire station, including 

site work and construction of new public street. 

 

Work Completed Last Two Weeks:   

 Access controls rough in completed and inspected 

 Framing inspection 

 Building dry-out underway 

 Framing stairs/mezz completed 

 Exterior insulation being installed 

 Exterior HM frames/doors/hardware being installed 

 Exterior soffits under install 

 Fascia installation underway 

 Roof panels on roof, not installed 

 Waterline install underway 

 Storm and sanitary piping underway 

 Mechanical-Electrical-Plumbing in living quarters 

 All cover inspections C-G last week 

 Water line has been extended and valve buried 

 

Upcoming Work – Next Three Weeks:  

 Frame ceilings, sheetrock walls in living quarters 

 MEP grids A-C & framing inspection A-C, followed by vapor retarder and 

ceiling 

 Door flashings underway 

 Fabricate pre-cast panels 

 Metal panels onsite, siding just arrived – mock-up will be installed 

 Roof install to occur 

 Wrap beams 

 Continue exterior WRB and insulation at bays 

 Waterline to building tie in, fire hydrant install 

 Site electrical install to start next week 

77

Item 6)

Page 54 of 67



 Excavate and sleeve gas line 

 Dig swale. 

 

Overall Project Schedule: 

 Overall schedule likely to push back several weeks.  Actual date TBD once 

some equipment delivery dates are confirmed. 

 

Financial Update: 

 Total Invoiced to Date:  $2,546,857 (42% of total project cost) 

 Change Order 1 – miscellaneous framing changes, over-excavation, 

additional sewer stubs.  Total amount of CO 1 – $34,896.  

 Change Order 2 – meeting room window, glazing-only.  Total amount of 

CO 2 - $1,173. 

 Change Order 3 – site electrical modifications, store front door changes, 

wood framing changes, plumbing modifications for truss deflection, 

weather barrier at fascia.  Total amount of CO 3 - $50,083. 

 

 Original Contract Cost Change Orders % of Contract 

Total $6,025,230 $86,152 1.4% 

Station $5,142,570 $73,370* 1.4% 

Public 

Infrastructure 

$882,660 $12,782 1.4% 

*Includes over-excavation of $3,600 based on price established in bid 

 

 

Attachment(s): 

 Station photos 

 Current 3-week look ahead schedule 

 

78

Item 6)

Page 55 of 67



   

Figure 1: Looking north from the Lobby into the hallway 
between the Lt. Office and Kitchen 

 Figure 2: Looking east from the Lobby into the hallway 
between the Office and Kitchen 

 

 

 

   

Figure 3: Looking west from the Lobby into the Apparatus Bay  Figure 4: Looking south from the Dining Area across the 
Dayroom 

   
 

  

79

Item 6)

Page 56 of 67



   

Figure 5: Looking west from the Dining Area into the Kitchen  Figure 6: Looking north from the Dining Area into the area 
between the Dorms and Restrooms 

 

 

 

   

Figure 7: Looking west from the area between the Dorms and 
Restrooms towards the Apparatus Bay 

 Figure 8: Looking east from the area between the Dorms and 
Restrooms towards the Meeting Room 

 

  

80

Item 6)

Page 57 of 67



   

Figure 9: Looking south from the floor in the Apparatus Bay  Figure 10: Looking north from the floor in the Apparatus Bay 
 

 

 

   

Figure 11: Looking south across the Apparatus Bay from the 
Mezzanine 

 Figure 12: Looking north from the Mezzanine 

 

  

81

Item 6)

Page 58 of 67



   

Figure 13: Meeting Room looking north  Figure 14: South exterior of station 
 

  

82

Item 6)

Page 59 of 67



   

Figure 15: Looking southwest onto the north face of the 
building (11/05/2021) 

 Figure 16: Looking southwest onto the north face of the 
building (12/08/2021) 

 

   

Figure 17: Looking northwest onto the south face of the 
building (11/04/2021) 

 Figure 18: Looking northwest onto the north face of the 
building (12/08/2021) 

 83

Item 6)

Page 60 of 67



Schedule 

#18

SCHEDULE FOR WEEKS:

MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON

12/6 12/7 12/8 12/9 12/10 12/11 12/12 12/13 12/14 12/15 12/16 12/17 12/18 12/19 12/20 12/21 12/22 12/23 12/24 12/25 12/26 12/27

Building Interior

Building Dry Out Grids C to G Wildish Dry out Dry out Dry out Dry out Dry out

Insulate Building Interior Home Insulation Insulate Insulate Insulate Insulate Insulate

Vapor Retarder Install Home Insulation Vapor Vapor Vapor Vapor Vapor

Sheetrock Top Out Walls & one side Mid Valley Top Out Top Out Top Out Top Out Top Out Top Out Top Out 

Fire Tape Above Ceilings/ Soffitts Mid Valley Fire Fire Fire Fire Fire Fire Fire

Frame Wood Ceilings NFS Ceiling Frame Ceiling Frame Ceiling Frame

Frame Locker Wall NFS Locker Wall Locker Wall Locker Wall

MEPF Rough In Hard Lid Gyp Ceilings MEPF Subs MEPF Ceilings MEPF Ceilings MEPF Ceilings

Suspended Soffits/ Ceilings Framing Mid Valley Soffits Soffits Soffits Soffits Soffits 

Sheetrock Walls grids C to G 100% Mid Valley Sheetrock 100% Sheetrock 100% Sheetrock 100% Sheetrock 100% Sheetrock 100% Sheetrock 100% Sheetrock 100% Sheetrock 100% Sheetrock 100% Sheetrock 100%

Tape and Texture Walls Mid Valley Tape/ texture Tape/ texture Tape/ texture

MEPF Rough In Grids A to C MEPF Subs MEPF Rough In MEPF Rough In MEPF Rough In MEPF Rough In MEPF Rough In

Cover Inspections Walls Grids A to C MEPF Subs Inspections Inspections

Framing Inspection Grids A to C FEI, County Framing

Dry Out Building Grids A to C Wildish Building Co. Dry Out Dry Out Dry Out Dry Out Dry Out Dry Out Dry Out Dry Out Dry Out Dry Out Dry Out Dry Out

Insulate / Vapor Retarder Grids A to C Home Insulation Insulate/ Vapor Insulate/ Vapor Insulate/ Vapor Insulate/ Vapor Insulate/ Vapor

Sheet Interior Apparatus Bay Plywood NFS Sheet

Building Exterior

Exterior Hollow Metal Frames, Doors 

& Hardware Install
TGC Exterior HM Doors Exterior HM Doors Exterior HM Doors

Overhead Door Jamb Flashings Santiam Flashing Flashing Flashing Flashing Flashing

Fabricate Precast Panels Wildish Building Co. Panels Panels Panels Panels Panels Panels Panels Panels Panels Panels Panels

Metal Siding Materials Here Swigart Materials

Mock up Metal Siding for Approval JR Swigart mock up mock up mock up

Metal Siding Install Grids C to G JR Swigart Metal Sidding Metal Sidding Metal Sidding Metal Sidding Metal Sidding Metal Sidding Metal Sidding Metal Sidding Metal Sidding Metal Sidding Metal Sidding

Fiber Cement  Soffits B,C & F Line First Siding Specialist Soffits Soffits Soffits Soffits Soffits Soffits Soffits Soffits Soffits Soffits Soffits

Mock Up Cement Siding for Approval Siding Specialist Mock Up Mock Up 

Cement Board Siding Siding Specialist Cement Board Cement Board Cement Board Cement Board Cement Board Cement Board Cement Board Cement Board Cement Board Cement Board Cement Board Cement Board Cement Board Cement Board

Install Sheetmetal Fascia Wraps Santiam Fab/ Install Fab/ Install Fab/ Install Fab/ Install Fab/ Install

Gutter Brackets Install JR Swigart Gutter Gutter

Roof Drip Metal JR Swigart Drip Metal Drip Metal Drip Metal Drip Metal

Roof Install JR Swigart Roof  Install Roof  Install Roof  Install Roof  Install Roof  Install Roof  Install Roof  Install Roof  Install Roof  Install Roof  Install

Wrap Beams Sheetmetal Santiam Beams Beams Beams Beams Beams

Pending Approved Pricing

Activity Crew/Sub

to 

Remarks

Milestones: 

Notice to Proceed:  4/1/21

Preconstruction Meeting:  4/6/21

1200C Permit Recieved:  5/4/21

Start of Work:  5/10/21

Substantial Completion:  5/2/22

Final Completion:  5/31/22

      5395 Millersburg Fire Station 15

12/6/2021 12/27/2021

Three Week Look Ahead

84

Item 6)

Page 61 of 67



MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON

12/6 12/7 12/8 12/9 12/10 12/11 12/12 12/13 12/14 12/15 12/16 12/17 12/18 12/19 12/20 12/21 12/22 12/23 12/24 12/25 12/26 12/27
Activity Crew/Sub Remarks

WRB Exterior Walls Grids A to C Home WRB WRB

Metal wall Flashings Grids A to C JR Swigart Flashings Flashings

Exterior Insulation Grids A to C Home Insulation Insulation Insulation Insulation Insulation Insulation

PT Nailers Grids A to C Siding Specialist PT PT PT PT PT PT

Exterior Sheetmetal Obseravtion 

Architect, Column Wraps

Architect  

Observation

Site Work

Water Main Line Install
Wildish 

Construction Co.
Water Main Water Main Water Main

Water Lines to Building tie in
Wildish 

Construction Co.
Tie in Tie in Tie in Tie in Tie in

Fire Hydrants install
Wildish 

Construction Co.
Fire Hydrants Fire Hydrants Fire Hydrants Fire Hydrants

Flush and Clean Water line
Wildish 

Construction Co.

Flush and 

Clean

Flush and 

Clean

Excavate for Site Electrical
Wildish 

Construction Co.
Site Electrical Site Electrical Site Electrical Site Electrical Site Electrical Site Electrical Site Electrical Site Electrical

Install Site Electrical Superior Electric Site Electrical Site Electrical Site Electrical Site Electrical Site Electrical Site Electrical Site Electrical Site Electrical

Street Excavate, Fabric & Rock
Wildish 

Construction Co.
Street Street Street Street Street Street Street Street Street Street Street Street Street

Gas Line  Excavate & Sleeving
Wildish 

Construction Co.
Gas Line Gas Line Gas Line Gas Line

Build Swales
Wildish 

Construction Co.
Swales Swales Swales Swales Swales Swales

Utility Slab Pricing
Wildish 

Building Co.
Pricing Pricing

Utility Slab MEP Rough In 
Superior Electric, 

JET
Underslab rough in Underslab rough in Underslab rough in Underslab rough in Underslab rough in

Form Utility Slabs Footings
Wildish 

Building Co.

Rebar Order and Install R2M2

Pour Footings Utility Court Wildish Building Co.

Gas Line Pricing Wildish Building Co.

Gas Line Install Wildish Building Co.

Mike Skeel will schedule

Ok to proceed underslab 11-23-21

Pending Utility Court Design Rev.3

Pending Utility Court Design Rev.3

Pending new design from Owner

Pending Utility Court Design Rev.3

Pending Utility Court Design Rev.3

85

Item 6)

Page 62 of 67



TO: Millersburg City Council 
 

VIA: Kevin Kreitman, City Manager 
 

FROM: City Staff 
 

DATE: December 9, 2021, for Council Meeting December 14, 2021 

SUBJECT: Project Updates Memo 
 

 

Monthly Update on Projects:  
Staff are currently in the process of implementing many projects and activities in 

the City to address objectives of the Strategic Plan, direction from Council, and 

needs staff have identified. In order to facilitate tracking these tasks, a Gantt chart 

has been developed. As staff continue to work on these tasks, the Gantt chart will 

be periodically updated and provided for Council and public information. The 

most recent version of the Gantt chart is attached to this memo. Tasks in blue are 

complete, tasks in yellow are in progress, and tasks that are not colored have not 

been started. 
 

There are many tasks currently in progress. An overview of several specific tasks 

and projects is provided below.  

 

Water Leak Corrosion Issue  

On November 20, a water leak was discovered at Siuslaw Court.  An emergency 

repair was performed, and the leak was fixed.  It was determined that the leak was 

caused by corrosion of the ductile iron pipe.  Although the presence of potentially 

corrosive soils in this area has been identified for some time, this is the first known 

instance of pipe corrosion in the Millersburg water system.  The piping in this area 

of the city, installed in 1998, is the oldest constructed by private developers.  Since 

2012, all ductile iron water piping constructed by private developers or as a part of 

city projects has included additional corrosion control measures. 

 

Millersburg staff are working with Albany Operations staff and a corrosion specialist 

to identify the cause of the corrosion in this location and determine whether this is 

likely to be a localized or more widespread issue.  A part of that investigation will 

include inspecting the pipe where the leak occurred, which will require additional 

work within Siuslaw Court.  Any affected residents will be notified in advance if this 

will require a temporary water shutdown.  When more information on this issue 

becomes available it will be shared with council.   

 

Water Management and Conservation Plan  

The Water Management and Conservation Plan (WMCP) draft is nearing 

completion.  This document guides the development and implementation of water 

management and conservation programs and policies to ensure sustainable use 

of water resources. A WMCP provides a description of the water system, identifies 

the sources of water used by the community, and explains how we will manage 

and conserve supplies to meet future needs. The document will be reviewed by 

staff in late December, submitted for agency review and comment in January, and 

the final draft will be submitted to the Oregon Water Resources Department in 

February.  Outcomes of the WMCP will be presented to Council at a future 

meeting. 

 

86

Item 7)

Page 63 of 67



Housing Needs Analysis/Buildable Lands Inventory (HNA/BLI) 

The City has now received the second draft back from the consultants.   We started 

to schedule this with the City Council for adoption; however, we thought it would 

be best to run this past the City Council first in a workshop setting.  We are now 

scheduling a workshop in January.     

 

87

Item 7)

Page 64 of 67



TO: Millersburg City Council 

VIA: Kevin Kreitman, City Manager 

FROM: Matt Straite, Community Development Director 

DATE: December 7, 2021 for the December 14, 2021 City Council Meeting 

SUBJECT: Updates to the Millersburg Municipal Code Chapter 5.10 Signs 

 

Action Requested:  

Approval and adoption of the attached ordinance to provide updates to our 

Municipal Code for signage, to ensure our Development Code and Municipal 

Code language are aligned. 

 

Discussion:    

The recent changes to signage regulations in the City’s Development Code 

have made sections of Title 5 of the Municipal Code no longer consistent with 

the Development Code.  This revision proposes changes to the Municipal Code 

to make the two consistent, while maintaining enforcement of sign code 

violations through the Municipal Code.  The changes also refer the reader to the 

Development Code for most details on City regulations regarding signs and 

provides the City clear authority to remove temporary signs that are found to be 

in violation of the Code.   

 

Budget Impact: 

None directly, though indirectly this may result in additional staff time spent 

removing illegal temporary signage.   

 

Recommendation: 

Council consideration and adoption of the proposed ordinance to provide 

updates to the Millersburg Municipal Code Title 5.10, as identified in attached 

ordinance. 

 

Attachment: 

o Ordinance 193-21 updating Chapter 5.10 of the Millersburg Municipal Code 

88

Item 9)

Page 65 of 67



ORDINANCE NO. 193-21 
 

 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING AND REPLACING MILLERSBURG MUNICIPAL 

CODE CHAPTER 5.10  

 

 

WHEREAS, the Millersburg City Council adopted a new Development Code in October 2020; 

and,  

 

WHEREAS, the Development Code includes details regarding the placement of signage; and,  

 

WHEREAS, the City Development Code and City Municipal Code should be consistent with 

each other; and,  

 

WHEREAS, the City Municipal Code historically provides the avenue for enforcement of 

violations of City Ordinances; and, 

 

WHEREAS, for clarity, Millersburg Municipal Code Chapter 5.10 should be repealed and 

replaced with language that is consistent for enforcement of sign requirements within the 

Development Code; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PEOPLE OF THE CITY OF MILLERSBURG DO 

ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:  

 

REPEAL THE ENTIRETY OF Millersburg Municipal Code (MMC) CHAPTER 5.10: 

  

FURTHERMORE, REPLACE MMC CHAPTER 5.10 WITH THE FOLLOWING: 

Title 5.10  

Chapter 5.10 - Penalties for Illegal Signs, Signs Prohibited in Rights-of-Way, Display of 

Political Signs 

 

 

5.10.010  Permission required 

 

No person or organization may erect or maintain any outdoor sign in violation of this Code or 

sign provisions identified in the Millersburg Development Code, except after receiving express 

written permission by the City.  

 

5.10.020  Purpose 

 

This chapter provides the source for violations of City sign requirements either under this Code 

or the Millersburg Development Code, and the rules and regulations regarding the display and 

removal of signs. 

 

  

89

Item 9)

Page 66 of 67



5.10.030  Removal 

 

(1) The posting of any sign within any right-of-way within the corporate boundaries of the 

City of Millersburg is prohibited, unless said sign or signage is placed by the jurisdiction 

having control over the right-of-way (City, Linn County, State).   

 

(2) The only exception to this rule is when the party has received a right-of-way permit from 

the jurisdiction having control of the right-of-way.  When the permit is not issued by the 

City, the person obtaining the permit is responsible to provide the City a copy of the 

permit granting approval prior to placement of the signage.  Failure to provide a copy of a 

right-of-way permit from another jurisdiction with right-of-way within the corporate 

boundary of the City of Millersburg may result in removal of signage as stated below.  

 

(3) The City may collect signs which were placed in the public right-of-way without a 

permit, and may dispose of said signs immediately. 

 

5.10.040 Display of Political Signage. 

 

One temporary sign per ballot issue and per candidate may be placed on property based upon the 

ballot of an election within the district where the property is located. In residential zones, signs 

are limited to an area of four-square feet per face and a maximum height of three feet. In 

commercial or industrial zones, signs are limited to an area of eight square feet per face and a 

maximum height of five feet. Signs may be placed 45 days prior to an election and must be 

removed no later than seven days after the election. 

 

It is illegal to place any political sign within the right-of-way.  Any political sign placed illegally 

within the right-of-way will be subject to removal and immediate disposal.  

 

5.10.050  Penalty 

 

A violation of this chapter shall constitute a Class C violation.  Each illegally placed sign is 

considered a separate violation.  

 

 

PASSED by the Council this 14th day of December, 2021. 

 

 

        

Jim Lepin 

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

        

Kimberly Wollenburg 

City Recorder 

90

Item 9)

Page 67 of 67


	Top
	Item 1)	Approval of November 9, 2021 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes
	D.1_Draft_City Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes_11-9-2021

	Item 2)	Acceptance of City Accounts Payable Report
	D.2_Accounts Payable - 11-12 2021

	Item 3)	Linn County Sheriff's Office
	E.1a_Millersburg City Report November 2021
	E.1b_Millersburg Contract Rpt_12-2021

	Item 4)	Engineering Intern Presentation
	Item 5)	Development Code Update - Ordinance 192-21
	G.1a_Staff Report DC 21-01 CC
	G.1b_Ordinance 192-21 DC 21-01
	G.1c_Proposed Text changes 12.2.21

	Item 6)	Fire Station Project Report
	I.1a_Council Report_11092021_Fire Station Project Update
	I.1b_fire station pictures
	I.1c_three week look ahead schedule

	Item 7)	Project Updates
	I.2a_Project Updates Memo to Council for 12-8-21

	Item 8)	Establish Workgroup for Republic Services Review
	Item 9)	Municipal Code Sign Update - Repealing and Replacing MC Chapter 5.10 - Ordinance 193-21
	K.1a_Staff Report MC Signs update Title 5 KK MS
	K.1b_Ordinance 193-21 Title 5 of MMC KK MS JB

	Bottom



